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Citizens Bancorp
of . . .
Virginia, Inc.

2005 Annual Report
President’s Letter

Dear Shareholder,

The past year has been very rewarding for Citizens Bancorp. The execution of key strategic
initiatives has resulted in substantial improvement in the company’s profitability. In addition,
your Board of Directors ended a lengthy period of due diligence with my election as
President and CEO of the company. My previous role was Acting CEO and Senior Loan
Officer of the Bank. After careful evaluation, additional changes were made in the
composition and responsibilities of the Bank’s senior management team. The members of our
senior management team are as follows: Ronald E. Baron, Senior Vice President/Chief
Financial Officer, Eric Roberts, Senior Vice President/Branch and Credit Administration,
Lynn Shekleton, Senior Vice President/Human Resources, and Rhonda Kincer, Vice
President/Marketing Manager and Branch Operations. I am very pleased to report that this is
an experienced group of bankers with strong local market experience, commitment to
superior customer service, and focus on meeting key bank performance objectives.

This continues to be a very challenging time for the banking industry. Major challenges
include increased competition, additional regulatory requirements, and a difficult interest rate
environment. The expenses related to regulatory compliance such as the Bank Secrecy Act
and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 continue to increase. Competition in this industry
remains fierce from bank and non-bank financial companies. In addition, the bank has
opened two branches in two years which has negative impact on eamnings in the near term;
however, these branches will provide excellent long term benefit as they continue to grow at
their existing pace. With all this said, I would like to report that your Company is up to the
challenge.

The Bank is well positioned with strong market share in its core markets of Nottoway,
Amelia, and Prince Edward and tremendous growth opportunities in its new markets of
Chesterfield and Colonial Heights. The Board, management, and staff worked extremely
hard to accomplish some key objectives in 2005 which include profitable loan growth,
growth in core deposits, expense management, and non-interest income growth. The Bank is
participating in areas to increase its non-interest income such as investment services,
secondary market fixed rate mortgages, title insurance services and additions to our
automated teller machine network.

The success of executing these key objectives is evident through the Bank’s financial
performance. Income before taxes was up 32%, or just over $1 million from the year-earlier
period. Return on average assets was 1.12%, or a 22 basis point increase over 2004, and the
return on average equity for 2005 was 9.30% or 137 basis points greater than the 7.93%
return on average equity for 2004. These extremely favorable indicators are mainly
attributable to a number of factors, including an increase in the net interest margin of 4.11%




for 2005 versus 3.86% for 2004. In addition, improved loan quality reduced the need to
provide for loan losses by $495 thousand compared to 2004. Non interest income, exclusive
of gains for securities, OREQO and loans sold increased $152 thousand despite competitive
market pressures that make it difficult to charge service fees. Non interest expenses were
contained to an increase of just $72 thousand over 2004. Looking ahead, a key advantage for
the Bank is its ability to grow in total assets without incurring any significant increases in
operating costs.

The core values governing our organization are integrity, dedication to excellence, respect for
the individual, and commitment to our employees, customers, communities, and
shareholders. These are values worthy of a great organization and guide us in evaluating our
operations and in our vision for the future. I am pleased to report to shareholders that your
company is a good corporate citizen. The bank’s staff involvement in community clubs and
activities, in addition to the bank’s financial contributions, continue to be an asset to the
communities we serve. Another example of our commitment to our communities is reflected
in our continued enhancement and improvement of our branch locations. To better serve our
customers we have recently completed renovations of our Downtown Blackstone Drive Thru
facility and we are in the process of completing additions to our Blackstone Shopping Center
branch which will include adding a second drive thru lane and ATM at that location.

The future of your company remains bright. Strategically the bank will continue to evaluate
growth opportunities to enhance our existing franchise. Your management team is focused
on improving departmental efficiencies, expanding product lines, maintaining credit quality,
and developing a culture of superior customer service. The Board and management will
continue to implement strategies for growth and increased profitability. The Bank has an
experienced, hard working staff that is dedicated to giving our customers exceptional service.
The Bank continues to provide our customers with personalized community bank service
while providing an array of services including online banking, investment products,
telephone banking, fixed-rate mortgages, Citizens Premier and Fantastic 50 trips, and a full
line of loan and deposit products.

This has been a very successful year for Citizens Bancorp. [ want to thank the staff for their
tremendous effort in achieving these results. I would also like to thank the Board of
Directors, management, staff, customers, and our shareholders for their patronage and
support and we look forward to continued success in 2006.

Sincerely,

Joseph D. Borgerding
President and Chief Executive Officer
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc. (Company) is a one-bank holding company formed on December
18, 2003 headquartered in Blackstone, Virginia. The Company is the sole shareholder of its only subsidiary,
Citizens Bank and Trust Company (Bank). The Bank conducts and transacts the general business of a
commercial bank as authorized by the banking laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia and the rules and
regulations of the Federal Reserve System. The Bank was incorporated in 1873 under the laws of Virginia.
Deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. In September 1995, the Bank became a
member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta.

The Company's primary activity is retail and commercial banking through its sole subsidiary - the
Bank. Financial services include commercial and consumer demand and time deposit accounts, real estate,
commercial and consumer loans, online internet banking, 24-hour ATM network, brokerage services, safe
deposit boxes, wire transfer services and other miscellaneous services incidental to the operation of a
commercial bank. The Bank also acts as agent for Visa and Master Card. The Bank is authorized to have a
trust department, but does not offer trust services. The Bank’s primary trade areas are served by its 10
branches located in the counties of Nottoway, Amelia, Prince Edward, Chesterfield and the City of Colonial
Heights, Virginia.

The Company’s primary revenue comes from retail banking in the form of interest income received
on loans and investments. This income is partially offset by the Company's interest expense on deposits
and borrowed funds, resulting in net interest income. The Company's earnings also come from noninterest
income in the form of deposit fees, gain on the sale of investments, ATM fees, etc. The Company’s
combined noninterest income and net interest income are offset by the Company’s noninterest expense
which includes employee compensation and benefits, occupancy, equipment and other operating expenses.

The Bank holds a 1.03% ownership in Bankers Investment Group, LLC which is used to deliver
investment services to customers. The Bank also holds a 15.15% ownership interest in Bankers Title, LLC
which it uses to sell title insurance. The Company has an 8.06% ownership in the Davenport Community
Financial Fund, LLC which seeks capital appreciation by investing substantially all of its assets in community
banks located in the Mid-Atiantic region of the United States. The Company has an ownership interest of
9.57% in the Community Bankers’ Bank Community Development Fund |, LLC which represents an
ownership interest in Community Bankers' Bank. The financial position and operating results of these
investments are not significant to the Company as a whole and are not considered principal activities of the
Company.

The Company maintains an internet website at www.greatbanksva.com which contains information
relating to the business. The Company makes available free of charge through its website its Annual
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K as soon as
possible after such forms have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Copies of the
Company’s Audit Committee Charter, Nominating Committee Charter and Code of Conduct are available
upon written request to the Company’s Corporate Secretary.

Employees

As of December 31, 2005, the Company employed 109 fuli-time equivalent employees. The
Company's success is highly dependent on its ability to attract and retain qualified employees. Competition
in the industry is intense for employees, however the Company believes it has been successful in recruiting
qualified employees and believes relations with its employees are excellent.




Competition

The Bank competes for business with numerous other financial institutions in its various trade areas
which include the counties of Nottoway, Amelia, Prince Edward, Chesterfield and the City of Colonial
Heights, Virginia. The Bank also serves a significant number of residents in Lunenburg County, Virginia as
well as the western part of Dinwiddie County, Virginia. The following data reflects the Bank's market share in
its primary market places at June 30, 2005, according to information obtained from the FDIC website. In
Amelia County, the Bank held 29.45% of the market share, in Nottoway County, 64.87%, in Prince Edward
County, 14.81%, in Chesterfield County, 0.10% and in the City of Colonial Heights, 0.79%.

Credit Policies/Loan Activities

The Bank offers a full range of short to medium term commercial and consumer loans. Commercial
loans include both secured and unsecured loans for working capital (including inventory and receivables),
business expansion (including acquisition of real estate and improvements) and purchase of equipment and
machinery. Consumer loans may include secured and unsecured loans for financing automobiles, home
improvements, education and personal investments,

Lending activities are subject to a variety of lending limits imposed by state law. While differing limits
apply in certain circumstances based on the type of loan or the nature of the borrower (including the
borrower's relationship to the Bank), in general the Bank is subject to a loan-to-one borrower limit of an
amount equal to 15% of its capital and surplus. The Bank voluntarily may choose to impose a policy limit on
loans to a single borrower that is less than the legal lending limit.

The Bank obtains short to medium term commercial and personal loans through direct solicitation of
business owners and customers. Completed commercial loan applications are reviewed by loan officers. As
part of the application process, information is obtained concerning the income, financial condition,
employment and credit history of the applicant. |f commercial real estate is involved, information is also
obtained concerning cash flow after debt service. Loan quality is analyzed based on the bank’s experience
and its credit underwriting guidelines which considers appraised value, market conditions, borrower strength
and collateral value.

Commercial Loans. The Bank makes commercial loans to qualified businesses in its market area.
Commercial tending consists primarily of commercial and industrial loans to finance accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant and equipment. Commercial business loans generally have a higher degree of risk
than residential mortgage loans, but have commensurately higher yields. Residential mortgage loans
generally are made on the basis of the borrower’s ability to make repayment from his employment and other
income and are secured by real estate whose value tends to be easily ascertainable. In contrast,
commercial business loans typically are made on the basis of the borrower's ability to make repayment from
cash flow from its business and are secured by business assets, such as commercial real estate, accounts
receivable, equipment and inventory. As a result, the availability of funds for the repayment of commercial
business loans may be substantially dependent on the success of the business itself.

Further, the collateral for commercial business loans may depreciate over time and cannot be
appraised with as much precision as residential real estate. To manage these risks, underwriting guidelines
are required to secure commercial loans with both the assets of the borrowing business and other additional
coilateral and guarantees that may be available. In addition, certain measures of the borrower are actively
monitored, including advance rate, cash flow, collateral value and other appropriate credit factors.

Residential Mortgage Loans. The Bank's residential mortgage loan portfolio consists of residential
first and second mortgage loans, residential construction loans and home equity lines of credit and term
loans secured by first and second mortgages on the residences of borrowers for home improvements,
education .and other personal expenditures. Loans are made with a variety of terms, including fixed and
floating or variable rates and a variety of maturities.




Under current underwriting guidelines, residential mortgage loans generally are made on the basis of
the borrower’s ability to make repayment from his/her employment and other income and are secured by real
estate whose value tends to be readily ascertainable. These loans are made consistent with the Bank’s
appraisal policies and real estate lending policies, which detail maximum loan-to-value ratios and maturities.
Loans for owner-occupied property are generally made with a loan-to-value ratio of up to 85% for first liens.
Higher loan-to-value ratios are allowed based on the borrower's unusually strong general liquidity, net worth
and cash flow. Loan-to-value ratios for home equity lines of credit generally do not exceed 90%.

Construction Loans. Construction lending entails significant additional risks, compared to residential
mortgage lending. Construction loans often involve larger loan balances concentrated with single borrowers
or groups of related borrowers. Construction loans also involve additional risks attributable to the fact that
loan funds are advanced upon the security of property under construction, which is of uncertain value prior to
the completion of construction. Maturities for construction loans generally range from 4 to 12 months for
residential property and from 6 to 18 months for non-residential and multi-family properties. Thus, it is more
difficult to evaluate accurately the total loan funds required to complete a project and related loan-to-value
ratios. To minimize the risks associated with construction lending, underwriting guidelines limit loan-to-value
ratios for residential property to 85% and for non-residential property and multi-family properties to 80%, in
addition to its usual credit analysis of its borrowers. Loan-to-value ratios described above are sufficient to
compensate for fluctuations in the real estate market in order to minimize the risk of {oss.

Consumer Loans. The Bank's consumer loans consist primarily of installment loans to individuals for
personal, family and household purposes. The specific types of consumer loans that the Bank makes
include home improvement loans, debt consolidation loans and general consumer lending. Consumer loans
entail greater risk than residential mortgage loans do, particularly in the case of consumer loans that are
unsecured, such as lines of credit, or secured by rapidly depreciable assets such as automobiles. In such
cases, any repossessed collateral for a defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate source of
repayment of the outstanding loan balance as a result of the greater likelihood of damage, loss or
depreciation. The remaining deficiency often does not warrant further substantial collection efforts against
the borrower. In addition, consumer loan collections are dependent on the borrower’s continuing financial
stability, and thus are more likely to be adversely affected by job loss, divorce, iliness or personal
bankruptcy. Furthermore, the application of various federal and state laws, including federal and state
bankruptcy and insolvency laws, may limit the amount which can be recovered on such loans. Such loans
may also give rise to claims and defenses by a consumer loan borrower against an assignee of such loan
such as the bank, and a borrower may be able to assert against such assignee claims and defenses that it
has against the seller of the underlying collateral.

The Bank's underwriting policy for consumer loans is to accept moderate risk while minimizing
losses, primarily through a careful analysis of the borrower. In evaluating consumer loans, lending officers
are required to review the borrower’s level and stability of income, past credit history and the impact of these
factors on the ability of the borrower to repay the loan in a timely manner. In addition, an appropriate margin
between the loan amount and collateral value is maintained.

Supervision and Requlation

General

As a bank holding company, the Company is subject to regulation under the Bank Holding Company
Act of 1956, as amended, and the examination and reporting requirements of the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System. As a state-chartered commercial bank, the Bank is subject to regulation,
supervision and examination by the Virginia State Corporation Commission's Bureau of Financial Institutions.
It is also subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Federal Reserve Board. Other federal
and state laws, including various consumer and compliance laws, govern the activities of the Bank, the
investments that it makes and the aggregate amount of loans that it may grant to one borrower.




The following description summarizes the significant federal and state laws applicable to the
Company and its subsidiaries. To the extent that statutory or regulatory provisions are described, the
description is qualified in its entirety by reference to that particular statutory or regulatory provision

The Bank Holding Company Act

Under the Bank Holding Company Act, the Company is subject to periodic examination by the
Federal Reserve and required to file periodic reports regarding its operations and any additional information
that the Federal Reserve may require. Activities at the bank holding company level are limited to:

banking, managing or controlling banks;
furnishing services to or performing services for its subsidiaries; and

s engaging in other activities that the Federal Reserve has determined by regulation or
order to be so closely related to banking as to be a proper incident to these activities.

Some of the activities that the Federal Reserve Board has determined by regulation to be closely
related to the business of a bank holding company include making or servicing foans and specific types of
leases, performing specific data processing services and acting in some circumstances as a fiduciary or
investment or financial adviser.

With some limited exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act requires every bank holding company
to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before:

acquiring substantially all the assets of any bank;
acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank if after
such acquisition it would own or control more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank
(unless it already owns or controls the majority of such shares); or

« merging or consolidating with another bank holding company.

In addition, and subject to some exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act and the Change in Bank
Control Act, together with their regulations, require Federal Reserve approval prior to any person or company
acquiring “control” of a bank holding company. Control is conclusively presumed to exist if an individual or
company acquires 25% or more of any class of voting securities of the bank holding company. Control is
reputably presumed to exist if a person acquires 10% or more, but less than 25%, of any class of voting
securities and either the institution has registered securities under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 or no other person owns a greater percentage of that class of voting securities immediately after the
transaction. The regulations provide a procedure for challenging this rebuttable control presumption.

In November 1999, Congress enacted the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which made substantial
revisions to the statutory restrictions separating banking activities from other financial activities. Under the
GLBA, bank holding companies that are well-capitalized and well-managed and meet other conditions can
elect to become “financial holding companies.” As financial holding companies, they and their subsidiaries
are permitted to acquire or engage in previously impermissible activities such as insurance underwriting,
securities underwriting and distribution, travel agency activities, insurance agency activities, merchant
banking and other activities that the Federal Reserve determines to be financial in nature or complementary
to these activities. Financial holding companies continue to be subject to the overall oversight and
supervision of the Federal Reserve, but the GLBA applies the concept of functional regulation to the activities

-conducted by subsidiaries. For example, insurance activities would be subject to supervision and regulation
by state insurance authorities. Although the Company has not elected to become a financial holding
company in order to exercise the broader activity powers provided by the GLBA, the Company may elect to
do so in the future.




Payment of Dividends

The Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from its banking subsidiary. The majority of the
Company's revenues are from dividends paid to the Company by its subsidiary. The Bank is subject to laws
and regulations that limit the amount of dividends it can pay. In addition, both the Company and the Bank
are subject to various regulatory restrictions relating to the payment of dividends, including requirements to
maintain capital at or above regulatory minimums. Banking regulators have indicated that banking
organizations should generally pay dividends only if the organization’s net income available to common
shareholders over the past year has been sufficient to fully fund the dividends and the prospective rate of
eamings retention appears consistent with the organization's capital needs, asset quality and overall
financial condition. The Company does not expect that any of these laws, regulations or policies will
materially affect the ability of the Bank to pay dividends. During the year ended December 31, 2005 the
Company declared $1,489,000 in dividends payable to shareholders.

The FDIC has the general authority to limit the dividends paid by insured banks if the payment is
deemed an unsafe and unsound practice. The FDIC has indicated that paying dividends that deplete a
bank’s capital base to an inadequate level would be an unsound and unsafe banking practice.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts, Assessments and Regulation by the FDIC

The deposits of the Bank are insured by the FDIC up to the limits set forth under applicable law. The
deposits of the Bank subsidiary are subject to the deposit insurance assessments of the Bank Insurance
Fund (“BIF”) of the FDIC.

The FDIC has implemented a risk-based deposit insurance assessment system under which the
assessment rate for an insured institution may vary according to regulatory capital levels of the institution
and other factors, including supervisory evaluations. These rate schedules are subject to future adjustments
by the FDIC. In addition, the FDIC has authority to impose special assessments from time to time.

The FDIC is authorized to prohibit any BIF-insured institution from engaging in any activity that the
FDIC determines by reguiation or order to pose a serious threat to the respective insurance fund. Also, the
FDIC may initiate enforcement actions against banks, after first giving the institution's primary regulatory
authority an opportunity to take such action. The FDIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any
depository institution if it determines, after a hearing, that the institution has engaged or is engaging in
unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations, or has violated any
applicable law, regulation, order or any condition imposed in writing by the FDIC. It also may suspend
deposit insurance temporarily during the hearing process for the permanent termination of insurance, if the
institution has no tangible capital. If deposit insurance is terminated, the deposits at the institution at the time
of termination, less subsequent withdrawals, shall continue to be insured for a period from six months to two
years, as determined by the FDIC. The Company is not aware of any existing circumstances that could result
in termination of any of the Bank's deposit insurance.

Capital Requirements

The Federal Reserve Board has issued risk-based and leverage capital guidelines applicable to
banking organizations that it supervises. Under the risk-based capital requirements, the Company and the
Bank are each generally required fo maintain a2 minimum ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets
(including certain off-balance sheet activities, such as standby letters of credit) of 8%. At least half of the
total capital must be compased of “Tier 1 Capital”, which is defined as common equity, retained earnings,
qualifying perpetual preferred stock, and minority interest in common equity accounts of consolidated
subsidiaries less certain intangibles. The remainder may consist of “Tier 2 Capital”, which is defined as
specific subordinated debt, some hybrid capital instruments and other qualifying preferred stock, a limited
amount of the loan loss allowance and pretax unrealized holding gains on certain equity securities. In
addition, each of the federal banking regulatory agencies has established minimum leverage capital
requirements for banking organizations. Under these requirements, banking organizations must maintain a




minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to adjusted average quarterly assets equal to 3% to 5%, subject to federal
bank regulatory evaluation of an organization's overall safety and soundness. In sum, the capital measures
used by the federal banking regulators are:

» the Total Capital ratio, which is the total of Tier 1 Capital and Tier 2 Capital,
o the Tier 1 Capital ratio; and
¢ the leverage ratio.

Under these regulations, a bank will be:

* “well capitalized” if it has a Total Capital ratio of 10% or greater, a Tier 1 Capital ratio of
6% or greater, a leverage ratio of 5% or greater, and is not subject to any written
agreement, order, capital directive, or prompt corrective action directive by a federal
bank regulatory agency to meet and maintain a specific capital level for any capital
measure;

+ ‘“adequately capitalized” if it has a Total Capital ratio of 8% or greater, a Tier 1 Capital
ratio of 4% or greater, and a leverage ratio of 4% or greater ~ or 3% in certain
circumstances — and is not well capitalized;

* ‘“undercapitalized” if it has a Total Capital ratio of less than 8% or greater, a Tier 1
Capital ratio of less than 4% - or 3% in certain circumstances, or a leverage ratio of less
than 4%,;

¢ ‘“significantly undercapitalized” if it has a Total Capital ratio of less than 6%, a Tier 1
Capital ratio of iess than 3%, or a leverage ratio of less than 3%, or

e “critically undercapitalized” if its tangible equity is equal to or less than 2% of average
quarterly tangible assets.

The risk-based capital standards of the Federal Reserve Board explicitly identify concentrations of
credit risk and the risk arising from non-traditional activities, as well as an institution’s ability to manage these
risks, as important factors to be taken into account by the agency in assessing an institution’s overall capital
adequacy. The capital guidelines also provide that an institution's exposure to a decline in the economic
value of its capital due to changes in interest rates be considered by the agency as a factor in evaluating a
banking organization’s capital adequacy.

The FDIC may take various corrective actions against any undercapitalized bank and any bank that
fails to submit an acceptable capital restoration plan or fails to implement a plan accepted by the FDIC.
These powers include, but are not limited to, requiring the institution to be recapitalized, prohibiting asset
growth, restricting interest rates paid, requiring prior approval of capital distributions by any bank holding
company that controls the institution, requiring divestiture by the institution of its subsidiaries or by the
holding company of the institution itself, requiring new election of directors, and requiring the dismissal of
directors and officers. The Bank presently maintains sufficient capital to remain in compliance with these
capital requirements.

Other Safety and Soundness Regulations

There are a number of obligations and restrictions imposed on bank holding companies and their
depository institution subsidiaries by federal law and regulatory policy that are designed to reduce potential
loss exposure to the depositors of such depository institutions and to the FDIC insurance funds in the event
that the depository institution is insolvent or is in danger of becoming insolvent. For example, under the




requirements of the Federal Reserve Board with respect to bank holding company operations, a bank
holding company is required to serve as a source of financial strength to its subsidiary depaository institutions
and to commit resources to support such institutions in circumstances where it might not do so otherwise. In
addition, the “cross-guarantee” provisions of federal law require insured depository institutions under
common control to reimburse the FDIC for any loss suffered or reasonably anticipated by the FDIC as a
result of the insclvency of commonly controlled insured depository institutions or for any assistance provided
by the FDIC to commonly controlled insured depository institutions in danger of failure. The FDIC may
decline to enforce the cross-guarantee provision if it determines that a waiver is in the best interests of the
deposit insurance funds. The FDIC's claim for reimbursement under the cross guarantee provisions is
superior to claims of shareholders of the insured depository institution or its holding company but is
subordinate to claims of depositors, secured creditors and nonaffiliated holders of subordinated debt of the
commonly controlled insured depository institutions.

Interstate Banking and Branching

Current federal law authorizes interstate acquisitions of banks and bank holding companies without
geographic limitation. Effective June 1, 1997, a bank headquartered in one state is authorized to merge with
a bank headquartered in another state, as long as neither of the states had opted out of such interstate
merger authority prior to such date. After a bank has established branches in a state through an interstate
merger transaction, the bank may establish and acquire additional branches at any location in the state
where a bank headquartered in that state could have established or acquired branches under applicable
federal or state law.

Monetary Policy

The commercial banking business is affected not only by general economic conditions but also by
the monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board. The instruments of monetary policy employed by the
Federal Reserve Board inciude open market operations in United States government securities, changes in
the discount rate on member bank borrowing and changes in reserve requirements against deposits held by
all federally insured banks. The Federal Reserve Board's monetary policies have had a significant effect on
the operating results of commercial banks in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future. In
view of changing conditions in the national and international economy and in the money markets, as well as
the effect of actions by monetary fiscal authorities, including the Federal Reserve Board, no prediction can
be made as to possible future changes in interest rates, deposit levels, loan demand or the business and
earnings of the Bank.

Federal Reserve System

In 1980, Congress enacted legislation that imposed reserve requirements on all depository
institutions that maintain fransaction accounts or nonpersonal time deposits. NOW accounts, money market
deposit accounts and other types of accounts that permit payments or transfers to third parties fall within the
definition of transaction accounts and are subject to these reserve requirements, as are any nonpersonal
time deposits at an institution.

These percentages are subject to adjustment by the Federal Reserve Board. Because required
reserves must be maintained in the form of vault cash or in a non-interest-bearing account at, or on behalf of,
a Federal Reserve Bank, the effect of the reserve requirement is to reduce the amount of the institution’s
interest-earning assets.

Transactions with Affiliates
Transactions between banks and their affiliates are governed by Sections 23A and 23B of the
Federal Reserve Act. An affiliate of a bank is any bank or entity that controls, is controlled by or is under

common control with such bank. Generally, Sections 23A and 23B (i) limit the extent to which the Bank or its
subsidiaries may engage in “covered transactions” with any one affiliate to an amount equal to 10% of such
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institution's capital stock and surplus, and maintain an aggregate limit on all such transactions with affiliates
to an amount equal to 20% of such capital stock and surplus, and (ii) require that all such transactions be on
terms substantially the same, or at least as favorable, to the association or subsidiary as those provided to a
nonaffiliate. The term “covered transaction” includes the making of loans, purchase of assets, issuance of a
guarantee and similar other types of transactions.

Loans to Insiders

The Federal Reserve Act and related regulations impose specific restrictions on loans to directors,
executive officers and principal shareholders of banks. Under Section 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act,
loans to a director, an executive officer and to a principal shareholder of a bank, and some affiliated entities
of any of the foregoing, may not exceed, together with all other outstanding loans to such person and
affiliated entities, the bank’s loan-to-one borrower limit. Loans in the aggregate to insiders and their related
interests as a class may not exceed two times the bank’s unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus until the
bank’s total assets equal or exceed $100,000,000, at which time the aggregate is limited to the bank's
unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus. Section 22(h) also prohibits loans, above amounts prescribed by
the appropriate federal banking agency, to directors, executive officers and principal shareholders of a bank
or bank holding company, and their respective affiliates, unless such loan is approved in advance by a
majority of the board of directors of the bank with any “interested” director not participating in the voting. The
FDIC has prescribed the loan amount, which includes all other outstanding loans to such person, as to which
such prior board of director approval is required, as being the greater of $25,000 or 5% of capital and surplus
{up to $500,000). Section 22(h) requires that loans to directors, executive officers and principal shareholders
be made on terms and underwriting standards substantially the same as offered in comparable transactions
to other persons.

Community Reinvestment Act

Under the Community Reinvestment Act and related regulations, depository institutions have an
affirmative obligation to assist in meeting the credit needs of their market areas, including low and moderate-
income areas, consistent with safe and sound banking practice. The Community Reinvestment Act requires
the adoption by each institution of a Community Reinvestment Act statement for each of its market areas
describing the depository institution’s efforts to assist in its community’s credit needs. Depository institutions
are periodically examined for compliance with the Community Reinvestment Act and are periodically
assigned ratings in this regard. Banking regulators consider a depository institution's Community
Reinvestment Act rating when reviewing applications to establish new branches, undertake new lines of
business, and/or acquire part or all of another depository institution. An unsatisfactory rating can significantly
delay or even prohibit regulatory approval of a proposed transaction by a bank holding company or its
depository institution subsidiaries.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and federal bank regulators have made various changes to the
Community Reinvestment Act. Among other changes, Community Reinvestment Act agreements with
private parties must be disclosed and annual reports must be made to a bank’s primary federal regulator. A
bank holding company will not be permitted to become a financial holding company and no new activities
authorized under the GLBA may be commenced by a holding company or by a bank financial subsidiary if
any of its bank subsidiaries received less than a “satisfactory” rating in its latest Community Reinvestment
Act examination.

Fair Lending; Consumer Laws

In addition to the Community Reinvestment Act, other federal and state laws regulate various lending
and consumer aspects of the banking business. Governmental agencies, including the Department of
Housing and Urban Development, the Federal Trade Commission and the Department of Justice, have
become concemed that prospective borrowers experience discrimination in their efforts to obtain loans from
depository and other lending institutions. These agencies have brought litigation against depository
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institutions alleging discrimination against borrowers. Many of these suits have been settled, in some cases
for material sums, short of a full trial.

Recently, these governmental agencies have clarified what they consider to be lending
discrimination and have specified various factars that they will use to determine the existence of lending
discrimination under the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act, including evidence that a
fender discriminated on a prohibited basis, evidence that a lender treated applicants differently based on
prohibited factors in the absence of evidence that the treatment was the result of prejudice or a conscious
intention to discriminate, and evidence that a lender applied an otherwise neutral non-discriminatory policy
uniformly to all applicants, but the practice had a discriminatory effect, unless the practice could be justified
as a business necessity .

Banks and other depository institutions also are subject o numerous consumer-oriented laws and
regulations. These laws, which include the Truth in Lending Act, the Truth in Savings Act, the Real Estate
Settlement Procedures Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, and the Fair
Housing Act, require compliance by depository institutions with various disclosure requirements and
requirements regulating the availability of funds after deposit or the making of some loans to customers.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 was signed into Jaw on November 12, 1999. The GLBA
covers a broad range of issues, including a repeal of most of the restrictions on affiliations among depository
institutions, securities firms and insurance companies. The following description summarizes some of its
significant provisions.

The GLBA repeals sections 20 and 32 of the Glass-Steagall Act, thus permitting unrestricted
affiliations between banks and securities firms. It also permits bank holding companies to elect to become
financial holding companies. A financial holding company may engage in or acquire companies that engage
in a broad range of financial services, including securities activities such as underwriting, dealing,
investment, merchant banking, insurance underwriting, sales and brokerage activities. iIn order to become a
financial holding company, the bank holding company and all of its affiliated depository institutions must be
well-capitalized, well-managed and have at least a satisfactory Community Reinvestment Act rating.

The GLBA provides that the states continue to have the authority to regulate insurance activities, but
prohibits the states in most instances from preventing or significantly interfering with the ability of a bank,
directly or through an affiliate, to engage in insurance sales, solicitations or cross-marketing activities.
Although the states generally must regulate bank insurance activities in a nondiscriminatory manner, the
states may continue to adopt and enforce rules that specifically regufate bank insurance activities in specific
areas identified under the law. Under the new law, the federal bank regulatory agencies adopted insurance
consumer protection regulations that apply to sales practices, solicitations, advertising and disclosures.

The GLBA adopts a system of functional regulation under which the Federal Reserve Board is
designated as the umbrella regulator for financial holding companies, but financial holding company affiliates
are principally regulated by functional regulators such as the FDIC for state nonmember bank affiliates, the
Securities and Exchange Commission for securities affiliates, and state insurance regulators for insurance
affiliates. 1t repeals the broad exemption of banks from the definitions of “broker” and “dealer” for purposes
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. !t also identifies a set of specific activities, including
traditional bank trust and fiduciary activities, in which a bank may engage without being deemed a “broker,”
and a set of activities in which a bank may engage without being deemed a “dealer.” Additionally, the GLBA
makes conforming changes in the definitions of “broker” and “dealer” for purposes of the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended.

The GLBA contains extensive customer privacy protection provisions. Under these provisions, a
financial institution must provide to its customers, both at the inception of the customer relationship and on
an annual basis, the institution’s policies and procedures regarding the handling of customers’ nonpublic
personal financial information. The law provides that, except for specific limited exceptions, an institution
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may not provide such personal information to unaffiliated third parties unless the institution discloses to the
customer that such information may be so provided and the customer is given the opportunity to opt out of
such disclosure. An institution may not disclose to a non-affiliated third party, other than to a consumer
reporting agency, customer account numbers or other similar account identifiers for marketing purposes.
The GLBA also provides that the states may adopt customer privacy protections that are more strict than
those contained in the act.

Bank Secrecy Act

The GLBA and the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) contain comprehensive customer privacy protection
provisions. Under these provisions, a financial institution is required to provide to its customers, at the
inception of the customer relationship and annually thereafter, the Company’'s policies and procedures
concerning the handling of customers’ nonpublic personal financial information. The BSA provides that,
except for limited exceptions, the Company may not provide such personal information to unaffiliated third
parties unless that Company discloses to its customer that such information may be so provided and the
customer is given the opportunity to “opt out” of such disclosure. The Company may not disclose to a non-
affiliated third party, other than to a consumer reporting agency, customer account numbers or other similar
account identifiers for marketing purposes. The BSA also makes it a criminal offense to obtain or attempt to
obtain customer information of a financial nature by fraudulent or deceptive means, except in limited
circumstances.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In response to the significant decline in investor confidence in the capital market after corporate
scandals and business failures, Congress enacted the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which has developed
the acronym known as SOX. The Act is intended to restore or maintain investor confidence by significantly
expanding the rules for corporate governance, improving the oversight of auditors of public companies, and
focusing the attention of companies and auditors on the effectiveness of intermal controls. The stated
objective of this Act is “to protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of corporate disclosures
made pursuant to the securities law.”

Among the major areas that the Act addresses are Audit Committees needing to pre-approve
services provided by external auditors, the rotation of audit partners of public accounting firms who are
assigned to a particular engagement, the independence requirements of Audit Committee members, an
oversight board which will perform quality control reviews of the audit work performed by public accounting
firms, “whistleblower” provisions to encourage company employees to address concemns directly to the Audit
Committee without fear of potential termination by management, and quarterly certifications of a company's
filings with the SEC must be made by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires management of public companies to design and
implement a system of internal controls over financial reporting, and annually to assess and report on the
effectiveness of these controls. In addition, the Act requires the company’s independent auditors to perform
an audit of internal controls over financial reporting and to issue an opinion on not only management's
assessment but also on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting. These
attestation requirements become a part of the company’s annual financial reporting that is known as Form
10-K filing. The Act required companies with a market capitalization of at least $75 million or more to begin
filing, under the Section 404 requirements, for fiscal years ending on or after November 15, 2004. These
companies became known as the “Accelerated Filers”. The Company is a non-accelerated filer and,
according to the latest Security and Exchange Commission's regulatory compliance schedule, will be
required to comply with the Section 404 reporting requirements for the fiscal year ending on or after July 15,
2007, or December 31, 2007.




Future Regulatory Uncertainty

Because federal regulation of financial institutions changes regutarly and is the subject of constant
legislative debate, the Company cannot forecast how federal regulation of financial institutions may change
in the future and the potential impact to its operations. Although Congress in recent years has sought to
reduce the regulatory burden on financial institutions with respect to the approval of specific transactions, the
Company fully expects that the financial institution industry will remain heavily regulated in the near future
and that additional laws or regulations may be adopted further regulating specific banking practices.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves risks and you should not invest in our common stock
unless you can afford to lose some or all of your investment. These risk factors may adversely affect our
financial conditions and future eamings. In that event, the trading price of our common stock could decline
and you could lose all or a part of your investment. You should read this section together with the other
information, including our consolidated financial statements and related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our future success is dependent on our ability to compete effectively in the highly
competitive banking industry.

The Company and the Bank faces vigorous competition from other banks and other financial
institutions, including savings and loan associations, savings banks, finance companies and credit unions for
deposits, loans, and other financial services in our market area. Many of these banks and other financial
institutions are significantly larger than we are and have greater access to capital and other resources, as
well as larger lending limits and branch systems, and offer a wider array of banking services. To a limited
extent, we also compete with other providers of financial services, such as money market mutual funds,
brokerage firms, consumer finance companies, insurance companies and governmental organizations which
may offer more favorable financing than we can. Many of our non-bank competitors have advantages over
us in providing certain services. This competition may reduce or limit our margins and our market share and
may adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We may be adversely affected by economic conditions in our market area.

The Company and the Bank are headquartered in the Town of Blackstone, which is part of Nottoway
County, in Virginia. Our market includes the counties of Amelia, Nottoway, Prince Edward, Chesterfield and
the City of Colonial Heights, all located in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Because our lending is
concentrated in this market, we will be affected by the general economic conditions in this market. Changes
in the suburban and rural markets we serve may influence the growth rate of our loans and deposits, the
quality of the loan portfolio and the loan and deposit pricing that we may obtain. Significant decline in
general economic conditions caused by inflation, recession, unemployment or other factors beyond our
control would impact these local economic conditions and the demand for banking products and services
generally, which could negatively affect our financial condition and performance.

We rely heavily on our management team and the services of key personnel.

The Company and the Bank is a customer-focused, reiationship-driven, and community-oriented
financial services organization. The Company expects our future growth to be driven in a large part by the
relationships maintained with our customers by Joseph D. Borgerding, President and Chief Executive Officer,
and our other executive management team, and our lending officers. Neither the Company nor the Bank has
employment agreements with Mr. Borgerding, executive management or our lending officers. The
unexpected loss of Mr. Borgerding or other key employees could have a material adverse effect on our
business and possibly result in reduced revenues and eamings. The Bank has invested in bank-owned life
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insurance that covers Mr. Borgerding and certain other members of executive management and the lending
officers, but not all.

The business strategy will require us to continue to attract, hire, motivate and retain skilled personnel
to develop new customer relationships as well as new financial products and services. Many experienced
banking professionals employed by our competitors are covered by agreements not to compete or solicit
their existing customers if they were to leave their current employment. These agreements make the
recruitment of these professionals more difficult. The market for these people is competitive, and we cannot
assure you that we will be successful in attracting, hiring, maotivating or retaining them.

Our need to comply with extensive and complex government regulation could have an
adverse effect on our business.

The banking industry is subject to extensive regulation by state and federal banking authorities.
Many of the banking regulations we are governed by are intended to protect depositors, the public or the
insurance funds maintained by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, not shareholders. Recently
enacted, proposed and future banking legislation and regulations have had, and will continue to have, or may
have a significant impact on the financial services industry. Banking regulations affect our lending practices,
capital structure, investment practices, dividend policy and many other aspects of our business. These
requirements may constrain our rate of growth and our earnings. The burden imposed by these federal and
state regulations may place banks in general, and specifically Citizens Bancorp of Virginia and Citizens Bank
& Trust Company, at a competitive disadvantage compared to less regulated competitors. In addition, the
cost of compliance with regulatory requirements could adversely affect our earmnings.

In addition, because federal regulation of financial institutions changes regularly and is the subject of
constant legislative debate, we cannot forecast how federal regulation of financial institutions my change in
the future nor the impact those changes may have on our operations. Although Congress in recent years
has sought to reduce the regulatory burden on financial institutions with respect to the approval of specific
transactions, we fully expect that the financial institution industry will remain heavily regulated in the near
future and that additional laws or regulations may be adopted further regulating specific banking practices.

The cost of being a public company is proportionately higher for small companies like us due
to the requirement of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the related rules and regulations promulgated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission have increased the scope, complexity, and cost of corporate governance,
reporting and disclosure practices. These regulations are applicable to our company. We expect to
experience increasing compliance costs, including costs related to internal controls and the requirement that
our auditors attest to and report on management’s assessment of our internal controls, as a result of
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The regulations are expected to be applicable to us for the year-ending December 31,
2007. These necessary costs are proportionately higher for a company of our size and will affect our
profitability more than that of some of our larger competitors.

Our operations depend upon third party vendors that perform services for us.

The Bank outsources many of its operating and banking functions, including key computer systems
software, network transmission services, the interchange and transmission services for the ATM network. As
such, the Company’'s and the Bank's success and the ability to expand our operations depend on the
services provided by these third parties. Disputes with these third parties can adversely affect the
operations. The Bank may not be able to engage appropriate vendors, in a timely manner, to replace any
vendors that are unable to perform with new vendors capable of servicing our needs.
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Our profitability depends on our ability to manage our balance sheet to minimize the effects
of interest rate fluctuation on our net interest margin.

Our resuits of operations depend on the stability of our net interest margin, which is the difference in
the yield we earn on our earning assets and our cost of funds, both of which are influenced by interest rate
* fluctuations. Interest rates, because they are influenced by among other things, expectations about future
events, including the level of economic activity, federal monetary and fiscal policy and geo-political stability,
are not predictable or controllable. [n addition, the interest rates we can earn on our ioan and investment
portfolios and the interest rates we pay on our deposits are heavily influenced by competitive factors.
Community banks are often at a competitive disadvantage in managing their cost of funds compared to the
large regional, super-regional or national banks that have access to the national and international capital
markets. These factors influence our ability to maintain a stable net interest margin. For the nine months
ended September 30, 2005 and for the year ended December 31, 2005, our net interest margin was 4.10%
and 4.11%, respectively, which is in line with peer banks.

We seek to maintain a neutral position in terms of the volume of assets and liabilities that mature or
re-price during any period so that we may reasonably predict our net interest margin; however, interest rate
fluctuations, loan prepayments, loan production and deposit flows are constantly changing and influence our
ability to maintain this neutral position. The greater the amount of maturities or re-pricing that occurs in any
given period to either the earning assets or the deposit liabilities will result in a greater sensitivity to
fluctuating interest rates. Customer preferences for certain loan types, fixed-rate versus adjustable-rate, and
preferences towards deposit products that may or may not be interest bearing, and savings versus time
deposits all contribute to potentially impacting the interest margin; either favorably or unfavorably. Although
management is unabie to controi these preferences, there are processes that assist in monitoring and
planning for such changes in customer preferences. At December 31, 2005, the Company's balance sheet
was positioned to be asset-sensitive for the next 12 months, which means increases in interest rates should
have a net favorable effect on the interest margin. In the longer term, the balance sheet becomes more
liability sensitive and declines in interest rates, in the longer term, will have a favorable impact on the interest
rate margin. However, changes in interest rates that are contrary to these expectations, could negatively
impact the interest margin and ultimately earnings.

Any additional credit losses or deterioration in credit quality could negatively impact our
financial results.

Management seeks to maintain a loan portfolio that is well diversified in terms of risk and credit
quality. As of December 31, 2005, the portfolio consisted of the following loan categories: residential (1-to-4
family) loans 41.0%, commercial real estate and construction loans 32.0%, commercial loans 11.9%,
cansumer loans 8.9%, and home equity loans 6.2%. Our lending focus has generally favored real estate-
secured loans over unsecured loans, as a means of mitigating possible losses due to credit losses. A major
change in the real estate market, such as a deterioration in the value of collateral, or in the local or national
economy, could adversely affect our customers’ ability to pay these loans, which in turn could impact us.
Risk of loan defaults and foreclosures are unavoidable in the banking industry, and we try to limit our
exposure to this risk by ronitoring our extensions of credit carefully. We cannot fully eliminate credit risk,
and as a result credit losses may occur in the future.
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ITEM 18B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2. ‘PROPERTIES

The main office of the Bank is located at 126 South Main Street, Blackstone, Virginia. Banking
Offices are located at 101 North Main Street, Blackstone, Virginia;, 1575 South Main Street, Blackstone,
Virginia, 210 Carter Street, Crewe, Virginia; 102 Second Street, Northeast, Burkeville, Virginia; 9060 North
Five Forks Road, Amelia, Virginia; 1517 West Third Street (Route 460 West), Farmville Virginia; 712 South
Main Street, Farmville, Virginia; 10001 Courtview Commons Lane, Chesterfield, Virginia and 946 Southpark
Boulevard, Colonial Heights, Virginia. All real estate and improvements at these locations are owned by the
Bank except for the real estate at the Chesterfield branch which is under a lease agreement for five years
renewable for five additional terms of five years each.

All of the Company's properties are in good operating condition and are adequate for the Company's
present and anticipated future needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Common Stock Performance and Dividends

Set forth below are the high and low sale prices of common stock as reported to management and
the dividends declared during the last two years.

Market Price and Dividends

Sales Price ($) Dividends ($)
High Low
2005
ISt QUANEr ... 20.25 17.60 .15
2nd qQuarter™ .........oeieiiiviireee e 17.75 17.00 15
Jrd quarter..........cccovveervverniecree e 17.55 17.05 .15
Ath QUAMET ..o irrerrecrecerrineeere e erareseens 17.50 17.10 .16
2004
Tstquarter.......ccooveeviiiiicc e, 18.25 16.00 A3
2ndquarter * ..., 19.50 18.00 28
3rd QUAMET ...t 20.00 18.75 A5
dthquarter.........ccccooeecevviiiiecieereee e 20.00 18.50 15

*As previously discussed, the Company changed the timing of its quarterly dividend payout in 2004
resulting in two dividend payments in the quarter ended June 30, 2004. Prior to 2003, the Company
historically paid semi-annual cash dividends.

The Company's future dividend policy is subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors and will
depend on a number of factors including future earnings, liquidity, capital requirements and regulatory
requirements. The Company believes its liquidity and capital resources are more than adequate to meet its
cash requirements for the foreseeable future. (See Item 1 — Supervision and Regulation for further
discussion on dividends.)

Purchases of Equity Secutities

On April 21, 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase plan of up to
122,400 shares of the Company’s common stock. At a meeting on August 17, 2005, the Board of Directors
voted to terminate the stock repurchase plan. The following table details that there were no stock
repurchases from January 1, 2005 through August 17, 2005:

Repurchase Plan Table

Total Average Cumulative Number of  Maximum Number of
Number of Price Shares Purchased as Shares that May Yet
Shares Paid Per Part of Publicly Be Purchased
Purchased Share Announced Plan Under the Pian
2005

1 quarter - 8 - 7.250 115,150
2 quarter T - 7.250 115,150

3™ quarter up to
8/17/2005 - $ - 7,250 115,150
TOTAL - $ - 7,250 0
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected financial data for the last five years.

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, except per share data)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT DATA:
Interest income $14,607 $13,453 $13,736  $16,501 $18,496
Interest expense 4,237 3612 4,457 6.766 10,026
Net interest income 10,370 9,841 9,279 9,734 8,470
Provision for loan losses 208 703 250 1,017 1,318
Noninterest income 2,076 2,014 1,473 818 892
Noninterest expense 8.075 8,003 7.219 5,602 4,749
Income before income taxes 4,163 3,149 3,283 3,934 3,295
Income taxes 1,060 675 751 1,112 991
Net income $3103  §2474 $2532  $2822  $2304
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET DATA AT YEAR END:
Assets $273,076  $280,994 $269,373 $271,983 $271,813
Gross Loans 200,366 198,238 175,447 167,082 195,162
Deposits 233,277 245,699 236,421 238,902 240,053
Shareholders’ equity 33,459 32,453 32,075 31,229 29,364
PER SHARE DATA:
Earnings per share basic and $1.27 $1.01 $1.03 $1.14 $0.92
diluted
Cash dividends declared $0.61 $0.71 $0.37 $0.43 $0.39
AVERAGE BALANCES:

Total assets $275,752 $274,999 $268,132 $271,973 $265,693

Stockholders’ equity $33,273  $32,609 $31,615  $29,769 $28,738
RATIOS:
Retum on average assets 1.13% 0.90% 0.94% 1.04% 0.87%
Retum on average equity 9.33% 7.59% 8.01% 9.48% 8.02%
Dividend payout ratio 47 .99% 70.17% 35.77%  37.30% 42.32%
Average equity to average assets 12.07% 11.86% 11.79% 10.94% 10.82%
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION

Management's discussion and analysis is intended to assist the reader in evaluating and
understanding the consolidated results of operations and financial condition of the Company and should be
read in conjunction with the Company’'s Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. The following discussion provides information about the major components of the
results of operations and financial condition, liquidity, and capital resources of the Company.

The Company conducts the general business of a commercial bank, offering traditional lending and
deposit products to business and individuals. Revenue is generated primarily from interest income received
on loans, investments combined with fee income and other miscellaneous sources. This income is primarily
offset by interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds, provision for loan losses and other noninterest
expenses such as salaries and employee benefits, occupancy expense and other miscellaneous expenses.

Forward Looking Statements

The Company makes forward looking statements in this annuai report that are subject to risks and
uncertainties. These forward looking statements include statements regarding profitability, liquidity,
allowance for foan losses, interest rate sensitivity, market risk, growth strategy, and financial and other goats.
The words “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” "should,” “projects,” “contemplates,” “anticipates,” “forecasts,”
“intends,” or other similar words or terms are intended to identify forward looking statements.

These forward looking statements are subject to significant uncertainties because they are based
upon or are affected by factors including:

o the ability to successfully manage growth or to implement growth strategies if unable to identify
attractive markets, locations or opportunities to expand in the future;

e maintaining capital levels adequate to support growth;

» maintaining cost controls and asset qualities as new branches are opened or acquired;

+ reliance on management team, including ability to attract and retain key personnel;

« the successful management of interest rate risk;

¢ changes in general economic and business conditions in market area;

¢ changes in interest rates and interest rate policies;

¢ risks inherent in making loans such as repayment risks and fluctuating collateral values;

e« competition with other banks and financial institutions, and companies outside of the banking
industry, including those companies that have substantially greater access to capital and other
resources;

« demand, development and acceptance of new products and services;

¢ problems with technology utilized by the Company;

¢ changing frends in customer profiles and behavior; and

« changes in banking and other laws and regulations.

Because of these uncertainties, actual future results may be materially different from the resuits
indicated by these forward looking statements. In addition, past results of operations do not necessarily
indicate future results.

Critical Accounting Policies

The financial condition and results of operations presented in the Consolidated Financial
Statements, accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and management's
discussion and analysis are, to a large degree, dependent upon the accounting policies of the Company.
The selection and application of these accounting policies involve judgments, estimates, and uncertainties
that are susceptible to change.

20




Presented below is a discussion of those accounting policies that management believes are the most
important (Critical Accounting Policies) to the portrayal and understanding of the Company's financial
condition and resuits of operations. These Critical Accounting Policies require management's most difficult,
subjective and complex judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain. In the event that different
assumptions or conditions were to prevail, and depending upon the severity of such changes, the
possibility of materially different financial condition or results of operations is a reasonable likelihood.
See also Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statements for a summary of significant accounting policies.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company monitors and maintains an allowance for loan losses to absorb an estimate of
probable losses inherent in the loan and lease portfolio. The Company maintains policies and procedures
that address the systems of controls over the following areas of maintenance of the allowance: the
systematic methodology used to determine the appropriate level of the allowance to provide assurance
they are maintained in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; the accounting policies for loan charge-offs and recoveries; the assessment and measurement of
impairment in the loan and lease portfolio; and the loan grading system.

The Company evaluates various loans individually for impairment as required by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, and
SFAS No. 118, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and Disclosures.
Loans evaluated individually for impairment include non-performing loans, such as loans on non-accrual,
loans past due by 80 days or more, restructured loans and other loans selected by management. The
evaluations are based upon discounted expected cash flows or collateral valuations. If the evaluation shows
that a loan is individually impaired, then a specific reserve is established for the amount of impairment. If a
loan evaluated individually is not impaired, then the loan is assessed for impairment under SFAS No. 5,
Accounting for Contingencies, with a group of loans that have similar characteristics.

For loans without individua! measures of impairment, the Company makes estimates of losses for
groups of loans as required by SFAS No. 5. Loans are grouped by similar characteristics, including the type
of loan, the assigned loan grade and the general collateral type. A loss rate reflecting the expected loss
inherent in a group of loans is derived based upon estimates of default rates for a given loan grade, the
predominant collateral type for the group and the terms of the loan. The resulting estimate of losses for
groups of loans are adjusted for relevant environmental factors and other conditions of the portfolio of
loans and leases, including: borrower and industry concentrations; levels and trends in delinquencies,
charge-offs and recoveries; changes in underwriting standards and risk selection; level of experience,
ability and depth of lending management; and national and local economic conditions.

The amount of estimated impairment for individually evaluated loans and groups of loans is added
together for a total estimate of loans and lease losses. This estimate of losses is compared to the allowance
for toan and lease losses of the Bank as of the evaluation date and, if the estimate of losses is greater than
the allowance, an additional provision to the allowance would be made. If the estimate of losses is less than
the allowance, the degree to which the allowance exceeds the estimate is evaluated to determine whether
the allowance falls outside a range of estimates. If the estimate of losses is below the range of reasonable
estimates, the allowance would be reduced by way of a credit to the provision for loan losses. The Bank
recognizes the inherent imprecision in estimates of {osses due to various uncertainties and variability related
to the factors used, and therefore a reasonable range around the estimate of losses is derived and used
to ascertain whether the allowance is too high. if different assumptions or conditions were to prevail
and it is determined that the allowance is not adequate to absorb the new estimate of probable losses,
an additional provision for loan losses would be made, which amount may be material to the Financial
Statements. As of December 31, 2005, Management believes that the Allowance for Loan Losses is
appropriate for the expected loss in the loan portfolio as of that date.
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Executive Overview

Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc. reported net income of $3,103,000 in 2005, an increase of 25.42%
or $629,000 from 2004 net income of $2,474,000. Net income on a per share basis was reported as $1.27
and $1.01 in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Company core earnings during 2005 were favorably impacted by
higher short term interest rates, despite average total assets remaining relatively unchanged, from 2004 and
an emphasis on expense management. In April 2005, the Company opened its tenth banking office, its first
in the City of Colonial Heights. At year-end this office had grown to $4.3 million in loans and deposits. In
September the Board of Directors completed the new management team by appointing Joseph D.
Borgerding as Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of both the Company and of the Bank,
previous to the appointment, Mr. Borgerding served as the Acting Chief Executive Officer and Senior
Lending Officer for the Bank.

Results of Operations

The table below lists the Company's quarterly performance for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004.

Three Months Ended
(in thousands) 2005 2004
Dec. 31 Sep. 30 June 30 Mar, 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30 June 30 Mar. 31

Interest income $ 3837 § 3721 $ 3524 $ 3525 $ 3500 $ 3373 $ 3347 §$3,233
Interest expense 1,186 1,092 995 964 971 877 867 897
Net interest income ‘ 2,651 2,629 2,529 2,561 2,529 2,496 2,480 2,336
Provision for loan losses - 12 51 145 663 15 25 -
Net interest income after 2,651 2,617 2,478 2,416 1,866 2,481 2,455 2,336
Provision for loan losses
Noninterest income 562 514 525 475 592 538 526 358
Noninterest expense 2,028 2,009 2,095 1,943 2,098 2,089 1,984 1,832
Income before applicable

income taxes 1,185 1,122 908 948 360 930 997 862
Applicable income taxes 302 296 223 239 64 229 215 167
Net Income S 883 & 826 $§ 685 8 708 $ 206 § 701 % 782 § 695
Netincome per share,
basic and diluted $ 036 § 034 § 028 § 029 $ 0.12 $ 029 $ 032 § 028

Summary

Total assets decreased $7.9 million during 2005 from $281.0 million in 2004 to $273.1 million. Loans
increased $2.1 million from $198.2 million at December 31, 2004 to $200.3 million at December 31, 2005.
Average loan balances for 2005 were $12.2 million greater than the average loan balances for 2004.
Funding for loan growth during 2005 came primarily from reallocating available fiquidity from overnight
Federal Funds and investment securities to the loan portfolio. Total deposits were $233.3 million at
December 31, 2005, a decrease of $12.4 million or 5.1% compared to $245.7 million at the end of 2004. The
majority of the decline in deposit account balances was the deliberate act of not renewing certain maturing
certificates of deposits that were from public funds. Current management changed the previous
management's funding scheme away from high costing, volatile public funds towards a funding strategy that
is focused on low-cost, relationship-based deposit accounts and Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings.

22




Stockholders' equity increased by $1,006,000 during 2005, predominantly due to earnings, net of
paying $1,489,000 in cash dividends and adjustments for unrealized losses of available for sale securities.
Book value per share increased to $13.71 at December 31, 2005, from $13.30 at December 31, 2004.

The Company’s return on average assets (ROAA) for 2005 was 1.13% compared to .90% in for 2004
while the return on average equity (ROAE) was 9.33% for 2005 compared to 7.59% in 2004. The Company
experienced growth in its core earnings in 2005 as net interest income increased 5.38% and noninterest
income increased 3.08% offset by an increase in noninterest expense of .90%. This means that the
Company realized an increase in pre-tax income of 13.47%; exclusive of the loan loss provision. The
Company's improved core earnings are primarily the result of its strategies to improve the net interest margin
by improving eamning asset yields, and focus on increasing low-cost deposits as a percentage of total deposit
balances. The Bank continued slow growth in noninterest income and controlled operating expenses.

The following table summarizes the net changes in the income statement as discussed:

Net

(in thousands) 2005 2004 Change %
Net interest income $ 10370 § 9,841 $ 529 5.38%
Noninterest income 2,076 2,014 62 3.08%
Noninterest expense 8,075 8,003 .72 .90%
Net income before provision

for loan losses & taxes 4,371 3,852 519 13.47%
Provision for loan losses 208 703 (495) (70.41)%
income taxes 1,060 675 385 57.04%
Net Income $ 3103 $ 2474 % 629 25.42%

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, the amount by which interest income on interest earning assets exceeds
interest expense on interest bearing liabilities, is the most significant component of the Company's eamnings.
Net interest income is the function of several factors consisting of changes in the volume and composition
(mix) of interest earning assets, funding sources, and market interest rates. While management's paolicies
influence these factors, external forces such as customer needs and demands, competition and economic
and monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board are also contributing forces.

The following two tables provide information needed to understand the impact on net interest income
as it relates not only to changes in mix but also as it is impacted by the combination of changes in rate and
volume. As iflustrated in the tables below, net interest income increased $529,000 in 2005 which resulted in
an increase in the net interest margin from 3.92% in' 2004 to 4.11% in 2005. The Company realized this
increase in interest income due primarily from loan yields rising faster than interest costing deposit rates.
The net increase in interest income was offset by an increase of $593,000 in interest expense due {o
increased rates on interest bearing liabilities as well as a increase of $32,000 in interest expense due to a
increase in volume, resulting in an overall increase in net interest income of $529,000 in 2005. The following
extraction from the rate and volume analysis demonstrates the net effects of the changes in net interest
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income from the rate and volume table:

Net increase in interest income on interest earning assets due to volume $ 411,000
Net increase in interest income on interest earning assets due to rate 743,000
Net increase in interest income on interest eaming assets $1,154,000
Net increase in interest expense on interest bearing liabilities due to volume $ 32,000
Net increase in interest expense on interest bearing liabilities due to rate 593,000
Net increase in interest expense on interest bearing liabilities $ 625,000
Net increase in interest income due to volume and rate $ 529,000

The increase in volume on interest eamning assets is primarily the result of the Company’s efforts in
its strategic plan to build and realign its loan portfolio. The increase due to rate changes in interest bearing
liabilities is primarily the result of higher short-term interest rates, while the Company’s efforts are to realign
its deposit base by increasing transactional and low cost deposits while not retaining high-cost, public funds
time deposits.
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Average Balance Sheet Data

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
{In thousands})
ASSETS
Interest eaming assets:
Loans $199,058 $12611 6.34% $186,863 $11249 6.02% 3168475 $11,033 6.55%
Taxable investment securities 33,832 1,291 3.82% 38,857 1,460 3.76% 50,397 1,970 391%
Tax-exempt investment securities 13,710 8§37 3.92% 15,362 590 3.84% 16,194 590 3.64%
Federal funds sold and other 5414 168  3.10% 10,115 154  1.52% 13,486 143 1.06%
Total interest earning assets 252,014 14,607 580% 251,197 13453 5.36% 248552 13,736 553%
Non-interest eaming assets:
Cash and due from banks 8,989 10,904 11,666
Premises and equipment, net 7,287 5836 4,927
Other assets 8,640 9,213 5696
Less allowance for loan losses {2,178) {2.151) {2.709)
TOTAL $275,752 $274,999 $268,132
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Interest bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits $37,521 $60 0.16% $37,656 $57 0.15% $31,665 $66 0.21%
Savings deposits 37,690 141 0.37% 41,250 104 025% 43,894 211 0.48%
Time deposits 128,338 3970 3.09% 127,076 3439 . 271% 128,757 4180 325%
Qther borrowings 2451 66 2.6%% 1.531 12 078% 4] 0 0.00%
Total interest bearing liabifities 206,000 4237 2.06% 207,513 3612 1.74% 204318 4457 2.18%
Non-interest bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits 33,503 32,534 30,915
Other 2976 2,343 1,286
242479 242390 236,517
Shareholders' equity 33.273 32,609 31615
TOTAL $275,752 $274,999 $268,132
Net interest eamings $10.370 $9.841 $9.279
Interest rate spread 3.74% 3.62% 3.34%
Net interest margin 4.11% 3.92% 3.73%

Notes: Tax-exempt interest income has not been adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis. For the purpose of these computations,
non-accrual loans are included in the daily average loan balance.
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table depicts the changes in interest income and expense caused by variations in the
volume and mix of these assets and liabilities, as well as changes in interest rates when compared to the
previous period.

2005 vs. 2004 2004 vs. 2003

Increase/ Change Due To: increase/ Change Due To:
(in thousands) {Decrease) Rate Volume {Decrease) Rate Volume
Assets:
Loans $ 1,362 $ 628 $ 734 $ 216 $ (619) § 835
Taxable investment securities (169) 20 (189) (510) (73) (437)
Tax-exempt investment
securities (53) 10 (63) - 0 0
Federal funds sold and other 14 85 71 11 26 (15)
Total interest-earning assets 1,154 743 411 (283) (666) 383
Liabilities:
Demand deposits 3 3 0 3 (5) 8
Savings deposits 37 46 © (107) (95) (12)
Time deposits 531 497 34 (741) (687) (54)
Other borrowings 54 47 7 - - -
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 625 593 32 (845) (787) (58)
Net interest income $ 529 $ 150 $ 379 $ 562 $ 121 $ 441
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Noninterest Income

The Company’s noninterest income increased 3.1% to $2.1 million in 2005 compared to $2.0 million
in 2004 which is an increase of $62 thousand. When noninterest income is viewed exclusive of net gains on
sales of securities, loan sales, and sale of OREQ assets, the result indicates an increase of $154 thousand
in 2005 as compared to 2004, or an increase of 8.3%. Expanding customer demand deposit relationships
and an increased number of automated teller machines are the primary reasons for the increase in
noninterest income during 2005. The banking industry's ability to charge service fees continues to erode. In
response to this trend, the Bank is participating in areas that will produce ancillary revenues such as
investment products, title insurance partnerships, and selling residential loans to the secondary market.

The following table illustrates the main revenue sources for noninterest income:

{in thousands) Net % of Yr/Yr
2005 2004 Change Change
Service charges on deposit accounts 3 1,284 $ 1,166 § 128 11.0%
Net gain on sales of securities - 102 (102) -100.0%
Net gain on sales of loans 58 46 12 26.1%
Net gain (loss) on sale of OREO (2) - 2) -100.0%
Income from bank owned life insurance 247 261 (14) -5.4%
ATM fees 223 162 61 37.7%
Other 256 277 (21) -7.6%
Total noninterest income $ 2076 $ 2014 $ 62 3.1%
Total noninterest income, exclusive of net gains
& losses. $ 2020 $ 1866 $ 154 8.3%

Noninterest Expense

The Company's noninterest expense increased .90% to $8.1 million in 2005 from $8.0 million in
2004. A number of factors contributed to the Company’s ability to maintain noninterest expenses nearly the
same levels as 2004. Among the factors was the restructuring of senior management personnel that began
in the later part of 2004 which produced savings during 2005, reductions in legat and consulting fees in 2005
as compared to 2004 as a result of concluded litigation, and the conclusion of certain asset write-offs at the
end of 2004, The opening of the Colonial Heights, Virginia branch in April 2005 and the full year operation of
the Chesterfield, Virginia branch were contributors to higher costs along with incentive compensation and
pension costs, a full year of internet banking services, higher liability insurance premiums, and costs
associated with the implementation of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The four main components of noninterest expense and their respective increases are detailed in the
table below.

% of Yr/Yr

(in thousands) Net Change
2005 2004 Change

Salaries and employee benefits $ 4553 $ 4396 $ 197 36%
Occupancy 436 373 63 16.9%
Equipment 810 878 (68) 7.7%
Other {1) 2,276 2,356 {80) {3.4)%
Total noninterest expense $ 8075 § 8,003 $ 72 .90%

(1) Please reference Note 10 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the principal components of Other Expenses.
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Provision for Income Taxes

Income before income taxes includes both taxable income and tax-exempt income, including interest
on municipal securities and bank-owned life insurance. The effective income tax rate, based on income
before taxes is, therefore, lower than the statutory income tax rate of 34%. The effective income tax rate
increased to 25.5% in 2005 from 21.4% in 2004 and from 22.9% in 2003. Income taxes for 2005 increased
to $1,060,000 from $675,000 in 2004 and $751,000 in 2003 as a result of higher pre-tax net earnings and a
decline in tax-exempt investments and loans as a percentage of the total.

Loans

The Company uses the funds generated from deposits combined with investment sales to support its
lending activities and competes aggressively for loans in its market areas. As a result, the volume of loans
increased 1.07% or $2.1 million in 2005. (The Bank has no foreign loans.)

Loans are made predominantly to residents of the Company’s trade area. Approximately 79% of the
loan portfolio on December 31, 2005 was composed of real estate secured loans.

The following table shows the Company's loan distribution at the end of each of the last five years.
December 31,

2005 2004 2003 002 2001
Loans: (In thousands)
Commercial & Agricultural $23,884 $26,464 $24,492 $22,.647 $30,648
Real Estate — Mortgage 146,707 143,626 126,607 118,026 132,657
Real Estate — Construction 11,888 10,767 5,040 3,494 3,680
Consumer 17,887 17,381 19,308 22,915 28,177
Total Loans $200,366  $198,238  $175447  $167,082  $195,162

The Company does not engage in highly ieveraged transactions. Commitments to extend credit to
customers in the normal course of business totaled $23.4 million at December 31, 2005. (See Financial
Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk discussion).

The following table shows the maturities of lpans outstanding as of December 31, 2005. Also
provided are the amounts due after one year classified according to the sensitivity to changes in interest
rates.

Within Maturing After One After
(In thousands) One Year  But Within Five Years  Five_Years Total

Commercial & Agricultural $ 8,008 $10,985 $4,891 $23,884
Real Estate — Mortgage 16,037 66,720 . 63,950 146,707

Real Estate — Construction 4,408 5,793 1,687 11,888

Consumer 1,925 15,689 373 17,887
Total Loans $30,378 $99,087 $70,901  $200,366

Maturities after one year with:

Fixed interest rates $76,657 $40,912 $117,569
Variable interest rates $22,430 $29,989 $ 52,419




Asset Quality

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that management fells is adequate after
considering portfolio and economic conditions, delinquency trends, past loan loss experience, the volume of
loans, as well as other factors deserving recognition. After considering these factors, the allowance for loan
losses was set at $1.9 million at year end 2005. This compares to an allowance of $2.7 million at year end
2004. In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Bank provided addition provision to the Allowance for Loan Losses
due to the deterioration of two commercial credits that were charged-off in April 2005. On December 31,
2005, the allowance was .98% of total loans down from 1.38% one year earlier. The provision for loan
losses charged against income in 2005 was $208,000 compared to $703,000 in 2004, an decrease of
$495,000.

The following table shows the allocation of the allowance for loan losses at the dates indicated. The
allocation of portions of the allowance to specific categories of loans is not intended to be indicative of future
losses, and does not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in any category of ioans.

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of
(Inthousands)  Amount totalloans Amount total Loans Amount total Loans Amount total Loans Amount total Loans
Commercial real
estate loans $ 693 27.22% $ 955 25.54% $ 1,232 22.24% $ 1,862 22.85% $ 1,624 21.16%
Real estate 1-4
family loans 174 46.00% 159 46.91% 257 49.92% 179 47.80% 229 46.81%
Real estate
construction
loans 319 5.93% 116 5.43% 81 2.87% 23 2.0%% 44 1.89%
Commercial
foans 592 11.92% 1,320 13.35% 609 13.96% 635 13.55% 653 15.70%
Consumer loans 176 8.93% 190 8.77% 212 11.01% 226 13.71% 230 14.44%
Balance End of
Period $ 1,954 100.00% $ 2,740  100.00% $ 2,371 100.00% $ 2,925 100.00% $ 2780 100.00%

Loan portfolio risks are monitored by management. A credit review of outstanding loans and loan
collateral is performed by management in order to identify potential losses. Non-accrual and impaired loans
were $1,695,000 and $2,189,000 at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively. It is the
Company's policy to put loans on a non-accrual basis once they are past due 90 days or more uniess they
are well secured and in the process of collection.

At year end 2005, management was monitoring loans considered to be impaired (under Statement
114) totaling $1,366,000, of which $329,000 are on a non-accrual status. They are followed closely, and
management at present believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate to cover anticipated losses that
may be attributable to these loans. Various forms of collateral are held as security on the loans.

A summary of non-performing assets for the past five years follows:

December 31,

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Non-accrual and impaired loans  $1,695 $2,189 $1,972 $3,079 $1.414
Restructured loans 0 0 - - 3,140
OREQO 200 - - 619 ‘ 410
Total non-performing assets $1,895 $2,189 $1,972 $3,698 $4,964
Loans past due 90 days and

accruing interest $242 $51 $932 $567 $212
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Criticized Loans are defined by management as loans which may or may not be currently accruing
interest, and while they are not classified as impaired loans, management has computed probable foss
amounts should the loans not perform as originally agreed. Criticized loan balances at December 31, 2005
and 2004 totaled $2,297,000 and $2,161,000, respectively. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, $195,000 and
$242,000, respectively was included in the Allowance for Loan Loss to cover for the possible losses on these
loans.

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO) balances represent the lower of cost or appraised value less cost
to sell of real estate acquired through foreclosure by the Company. The Company regularly evaluates the
carrying value of such assets and adjusts the balances as required. The Company actively markets such
properties to reduce potential losses and expenses related to carrying these assets.

In 2005, charge-offs of loans, net of recoveries, were $992,000 compared to $334,000 in 2004, as
illustrated in the table below. The following table further summarizes the Company’s loan loss experience for
the preceding five years:

December 31,

(In thousands)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Balance at January 1, $2,740 $2,371 $2,925 $2,780 $2,107
Charge-offs:
Commercial & Agricultural 872 23 754 324 144
Real Estate 377 292 45 450 224
Consumer 138 153 119 389 402
Total Charge-Offs $1,387 $468 $918 $1,163 $770
Recoveries:
Commercial & Agricultural $141 $33 $7 $134 $4
Real Estate 138 4 3 0 0
Consumer 114 97 104 167 121
Total Recoveries $393 $134 $114 $291 $125
Net Charge-offs $994 $334 $804 $872 $645
Provision for loan losses $208 $703 $250 $1,017 $1,318
Balance at December 31, $1,954 $2,740 $2,371 $2,925 $2,780
Ratio of net charge-offs to 0.50% 0.18% 0.48% 0.47% 0.33%

average loans outstanding
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investments

The Company's purchases and sales of investments are managed in conjunction with other uses of
funds, liquidity provisions, and investment market conditions. During 2005, there were no realized net gains
on investment porifolio securities due to investment sales.

The following table sets forth the carrying amount of investment in debt and equity securities at the
dates indicated:

December 31,
(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003

U.S. Treasury and other U.S.
Government agencies and

corporations $28,122 $26,484 $35,035
State and political subdivisions 15,649 16,260 19,497
Other 3,483 3,620 5,785
Total $47.254 $46,364 $60,317

The following table sets forth the carrying amount of maturities of investment securities at December
31, 2005:

Maturing
Within One After One Year After Five But

Year Within Five Years Within Ten Years  After Ten Years
(in thousands) Amount Yield Amount  Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
U.S. Treasury and other
U.S. government
agencies and
corporations - - $13,909 3.58% $8,925 4.16% $6,197 4.76%
State and political
subdivisions 2,088 4.86% 3,969 4.45% 9,105 3.64% 488 4.00%
Other - - 2,573 3.48% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Total _$2,088 . $20,451 ‘ $18,030 $6,685

Mortgage backed securities in the amount of $9,362,000 are included in the above table based on
expected weighted average maturities.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, investment securities with a book value of $16,130,000 and
$11,431,000, respectively, were pledged to collateralize public deposits and for other purposes.

All investment ‘in debt securities are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value
adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. By carrying the investment portfolio as
available for sale, management has the opportunity to react to changing liquidity needs and market
conditions.

31




Deposits

Total deposits decreased $12.4 million or 5.1% in 2005. During 2005, higher rate time deposits
(TDs), mainiy from municipal and state deposits, were allowed to mature since management determined that
this was in the best interest of the Bank in order to control cost of funds, to improve net interest income and
reduce the overall volatility inherent in these deposits. A portion of the decline in deposit balances was
attributed to commercial customers who opted to invest in the Bank's Investment Sweeps product. At
December 31, 2005, the balance in this product was $4.5 million or an increase of $3.3 million from
December 31, 2004. The balance of this product is classified as short-term borrowings on the Company’s
balance sheet. The Bank continues to focus efforts at attracting lower cost deposits and periodically offers
promotions that are reliant on the customer having multiple account relationships with the Bank. The
average balances and rates paid on depaosits for the preceding three years are shown in the table below:

Average Deposits and Rates Paid:

2005 2004 2003

Amount ate Amount Rate Amount Rate
{In thousands)
Non-interest bearing demand
deposits $33,503 $32,534 $30,915
Interest bearing demand
deposits 37,521 0.16% 39,187 0.18% 31,665 0.21%
Savings deposits 37,690 0.37% 41,250 0.25% 43,894 0.48%
Time deposits 128,338 3.09% 127,076 2.71% _ 128,757 3.25%
Total $237,052 2.06% $240,047 1.74% $235231 2.18%

The Company’s time deposits with balances of $100,000 or more totaled $42.9 miilion at December
31, 2005, and comprised 18.4% of the Company's total deposits. These time deposits were maintained
predominantly by long-time customers located in the Company's trade area.

Maturities of time deposit of $100,000 or more outstanding at December 31, 2005 are summarized
below:

Time Certificates of Deposit
(In thousands)

3 months or less $ 3,150
Over 3 months through 6 months 2,448
Over 6 through 12 months 13,371
Over 12 months 23,801

Total $42,970

Financial Instruments with Off Balance Sheet Risk

The Company is a party to credit related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the
normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and commercial letters of credit. Such commitments
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in
the balance sheets.
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The Company's exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these
commitments. The Company follows the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for on-
balance-sheet instruments. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the following financial instruments were
outstanding whose contract amounts represent credit risk:

2005 2004
(In thousands)
Commitments to extend credit 3 22,804 $ 28,768
Standby letters of credit ’ 559 420

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation
of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. The commitments for equity lines of credit may
expire without being drawn upon. Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements. The amount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary by the Company, is
based on management's credit evaluation of the customer.

Unfunded commitments under commercial lines-of-credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft
protection agreements are commitments for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers.
These lines-of-credit may be secured or unsecured with varied maturities based upon product type,
collateral, and credit worthiness of the borrower.

Standby letters-of-credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters-of-credit are primarily issued to support public and
private borrowing arrangements. Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within one year.
The credit risk involved in issuing letters-of-credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan
facitiies fo customers. The Bank generally holds collateral supporting those commitments if deemed
necessary.

Liguidity

Liquidity assesses the Company's ability to meet financial obligations consisting of lending
commitments, deposit outflows, operational expenses and contingencies that arise during the normal course
of business. Liquidity is also defined as the Company’s ability to meet the borrowing and deposit withdrawal
requirements of the customers of the Company in addition to meeting current and planned expenditures.
The Company's liquidity is derived primarily from its deposit base and equity capital and is provided through
the Company's cash, balances in correspondent banks, federal funds sold, investments maturing or repaying
within one year and securities available for sale. The Company’s growth has continued to be funded primarily
through these sources.

As of December 31, 2005, approximately $51.1 million or 26% of the loan portfolio will mature or re-
price within one year. Maturities of investments in the securities portfolio are scheduled to provide a steady
flow of funds to meet deposit withdrawals or loan demand. Substantial monthly repayments on loans also
provide funds for liquidity demands. Additionally, a cash reserve is maintained, usually in the form of
overnight investments in federal funds. During 2005, the Company was a seller of Federal funds in daily
average amounts of $5.4 million.

Other sources of liquidity available to the Company include its capacity to borrow additional funds
when necessary. Federal funds lines of credit are maintained with three correspondent banks however the
Company did not have any amount outstanding as of December 31, 2005. As of December 31, 2005, the
Company has the following lines of credit available:

Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta $65,500,000

Community Bankers Bank 11,400,000
SunTrust 8,000,000
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Capital Resources

The Company's principal source of capital is generated through retained earnings. in 2005,
$1,614,000, or 52%, of earnings were retained and added to the capital of the Company. This percentage
of retained earnings is higher than in previous years.

Capital growth has historically benefited from a conservative dividend policy. in 2005 the dividend
payout represented 48.0% of net income. The Company's current Dividend Policy limits annual dividend
payouts to no more than 60% of the net eamings for the trailing four calendar quarters. The ratio of average
equity to average assets was 12.07% in 2005, compared to 11.86% in 2004. Stockholders' equity was
$33,459,107 on December 31, 2005.

The Company'’s Tier { Leverage ratio was 12.3%. The Tier | risk-based capital ratio for the Company
stood at 18.8% on December 31, 2005 while the Tier Il or total risk-based capital ratio was 19.8%. Both Tier
1 and total risk-based capital ratios at December 31, 2005 exceeded regulatory risk-based capital
requirements by substantial margins and the Company continues to be well capitalized.

Cash dividends totaling $1,489,000 were declared in 2005 which represents a payout ratio of 48.0%
compared to a payout ratio of 70.2% in 2004. During 2004, the Company converted from paying cash
dividends on a semi-annual basis to quarterly payments, and the conversion resulted in a higher dividend
payout ratio for 2004. 1t is anticipated that internally generated funds will cover any capital improvements in
2006. The Company believes its liquidity and capital resources are more than adequate to meet its cash
requirements for the foreseeable future.

Contractual Obligations as of December 31, 2005

The following table presents the Company’s contractual obligations and scheduled payments due at
various intervals over the next five years and beyond:

Payments Due by Period
Less than Over
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Short-term borrowings $ 4,536 $ 4536
Operating leases 141 41 84 16 -
Total $ 4677 $ 4577 $ 84 $ 16 $ -

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures were approximately $400 thousand in 2005 compared to $2.8 mitlion in 2004.
The capital expenditures in 2005 were primarily due fo the expenditures associated with the opening of the
Company’s new branch in 2005 and the Company’s continued initiative to complete the renovations of
banking offices. Expenditures in. 2004 were primarily due to the Company's acquisition of a new banking
office in Colonial Heights, in addition to the Company’s initiative to remodel! all banking offices.

Capital expenditures are projected to be approximately $1.5 million in 2006 which include the
conclusion of major banking office renovations, information technology enhancements and routine
replacement of furniture and equipment.

Inflation
In financial institutions virtually all of the assets and liabilities of the Company are monetary in nature.

As a result, interest rates have a greater impact on a bank’s performance than the effects of general levels of
inflation since interest rate movement is not necessarily affected by inflation.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the potential risk to earnings and/or equity value due to changes in interest rates and
other market conditions as they relate to the financial industry. The Company's market risk exposure is
primarily its exposure to interest rate risk (IRR). The measuring, monitoring and management of IRR is the
responsibility of the Asset Liability Management Committee (the ALCO). The Board of Directors of the
Company has delegated responsibility for asset liability management to the ALCO whose main objectives
are to manage IRR while optimizing earnings through net interest income and management of the balance
sheet. The Company uses a simulation model on a quarterly basis to measure IRR. This model utilizes the
Company’s financial data and various management assumptions and projections as they relate to growth,
interest rates, noninterest income and noninterest earnings in order to forecast the interest sensitivity of the
Company and its potential impact on net interest income, earnings -and equity. The model projects a “most
likely” forecast which is then “shocked” with various interest rate increases and decreases in order to project
the short term effects on net interest income and net income. The model also projects the effects on the net
economic value (NEV) of the Company using the same interest rate increases and decreases. The NEV
sensitivity measure is a measure of the long-term risk of the bank.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company's earnings sensitivity analysis indicates that the Company
remains slightly asset sensitive in the near term and is exposed to declining eamings if rates fall. This
condition is common as asset/liability management dictates the need to be asset sensitive in a rising rate
environment that existed in 2005 and is expected to continue into 2006. The Company’'s NEV sensitivity
analysis indicates that the Company becomes modestly liability sensitive in the long term. Since the
earnings maodel uses numerous assumptions regarding the effect of changes in interest rates on the timing
and extent of re-pricing characteristics, future cash flows and customer behavior, the model cannot precisely
estimate net income and the effect on net income from sudden changes in interest rates. Actual results will
differ from simulated results due to the timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes and
changes in market conditions and management strategies, among other factors.

Summary information about the Company's interest rate risk measures is presented below:

December 31
2005 2004
Static net present value change:
+200 basis point shock vs stable rate -55% -52%
-200 basis point shock vs stable rate 08% -4.5%
1-year net income simulation projection:
+200 basis point shock vs stable rate 32% 5.0%
-200 basis point shock vs stable rate 9.5% -17.5%
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The following static gap table illustrates the Company’s interest rate sensitivity between interest
earnings assets and interest-bearing liabilities over time:

INTEREST SENSITIVITY GAP ANALYSIS

At December 31, 2005

(in thousands) Within 91to365 1to2 2to5 Over5 Total
90 Days Days Years Years Years Institution
Earning Assets
Securities, at fair value 2,702 4,835 4,458 18,349 16,910 47,254
Restricted securities 684 - - - - 684
Federal funds sold 513 - - - - 513
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 72 - - - - 72
Loans, net of unearned income 31,352 52,884 36,173 38,908 41,049 200,366
Total earning assets 35,323 57,719 40,631 57,257 57,959 248,889
Interest-hearing Liabilities
NOW Accounts 2,148 6,444 8,591 18,614 650 36,447
Money market accounts 14,765 - - - - 14,765
Savings accounts 1,206 3,618 4,823 10,450 - 20,097
Time deposits 9,896 49,472 34,975 32,316 - 126,659
Short term borrowings 4,536 - - - - 4,536
Total interest-bearing liabilities 32,551 59,534 48,389 61,380 650 202,504
Cumulative interest sensitivity
gap 2,772 957 (6,801) (10,924) 46,385 -
GAP / total earning assets (%) 1.11% 0.38% (2.73)% (4.39)% 18.64% -
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The following financial statements are filed as a part of this report following ltem 15 below:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31,

2005, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
iTEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by it in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods required
by the Securities and Exchange Commission, including, without limitation, those controls and procedures
designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design
and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures was carried out under the supervision
and with the participation of the Company's management, including the chief executive officer and chief
financial officer. Based on and as of the date of such evaluation, these officers concluded that the
Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

The Company also maintains a system of internal accounting controls that is designed to provide
assurance that assets are safeguarded and that transactions are executed in accordance with
management’'s authorization and properly recorded. This system is continually reviewed and is augmented
by written policies and procedures, the careful selection and training of qualified personnel and an internal
audit program to monitor its effectiveness. There was no change in the internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2005 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this ltem is
incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be filed within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this ltem is
incorporated by reference to the Company’'s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be filed within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Pursuant to General instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this Item is
incorporated by reference to the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be filed within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this item is
incorporated by reference to the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be filed within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this Item is
incorporated by reference to the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be filed within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year.
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ITEM 15.

(a)

(b)
(c)

PART IV

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(1) and (2). The response to this portion of ltem 15 is submitted as a separate section of this

report.
(3) Exhibits.

Exhibit No.

Description

3.1

3.2

10.1

10.2

311

312

32.1

32.2

Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (restated in electronic
format only through June 10, 2004) (filed herewith).

Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company’'s Form 8-K, filed February 6, 2004).

Management Continuity Agreement dated as of May 2, 2005 between the
Company and Ronald E. Baron (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Form 8-K, filed May 13, 2005).

Management Continuity Agreement dated as of March 28, 2003 between
the Company and Joseph D. Borgerding (filed herewith).

Subsidiary of the Company (filed herewith).

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) (fited
herewith).

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a- 14(a) (filed |
herewith).

Statement of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant o 18 U.S.C. § 1350 (filed
herewith).

Statement of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 {filed
herewith). '

Exhibits - - See ltem 15(a)(3) above.

Financial Statement Schedules - - See ltem 15(a)(2) above.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc. and Subsidiary
Blackstone, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc. and Subsidiary as
of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Qur audits included consideration of intemal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

{ Myl LSk K.

Winchester, Virginia
February 1, 2006




CITIZENS BANCORP OF VIRGINIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

. Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2005 and 2004

Assets

Cash and due from banks

Interest-bearing deposits in banks

Federal funds sold

Securities available for sale, at fair market value

Restricted securities

Loaus, net of allowance for loan losses of $1,954,307 in 2005
and $2,739,678 in 2004

Premises and equipment, net

Accrued interest receivable

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Liabilities
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing
Total deposits
Short term borrowings
Accrued interest payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders' Equity

Preferred stock, $0.50 par value; authorized 1,000,000 shares;
none outstanding

Common stock, $0.50 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding, 2,440,750 in 2005 and in 2004

Additional paid-in capital

Retained eamings

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss), net

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

2005 2004
$ 8,645,252 $ 8,419,509
72,013 1,557,021
513,000 11,604,000
47,253,839 46,364,058
683,600 631,200
198,411,785 195,497,850
7,174,461 7,426,552
1,705,916 1,508,793
8,616,537 7,984,886

$ 273,076,403

¥ 280,993,869

$ 35308433  § 33,861,333
197,968,229 211,837,460
$ 233,276,662  $ 245,698,793
4,536,076 1,264,007
874,490 674,880
930,068 903,060

$ 239,617,296

§ 248,540,740

$ -- $ --
1,220,375 1,220,375
49,420 49,420
32,971,223 31,357,497
(781,911) (174,163)

$ 33,459,107 $ 32,453,129
$ 273,076,403 $ 280,993,869

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CITIZENS BANCORP OF VIRGINIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

2005 2004 2003
Interest and Dividend Income
Loans, including fees $ 12,610,968 $ 11,249,318 $ 11,032,968
Investment securities:
Taxable 1,285,326 1,415,127 1,917,763
Tax-exempt 522,300 590,092 589,977
Dividends - 20,575 44,435 51,918
Federal funds sold 159,451 140,625 134,330
Other 8,320 12,980 8,783
Total interest and dividend income $ 14,606,940 $ 13,452,577 $ 13,735,739
Interest Expense
Deposits $ 4,170,702 $ 3,599,759 $ 4,456,840
Short term borrowings 66,688 12,486 --
Total interest expense $ 42377390 $ 3,612,245 $ 4,456,840
Net interest income $ 10,369,550 $ 9,840,332 $ 9,278,899
Provision for loan losses 208,000 703,000 250,000

Net interest income after provision for loan losses $ 10,161,550 “$ 9,137,332 $ 9028899

Noninterest Income
Service charges on deposit accounts $ 1,293,869 $ 1,166,361 $ 806,095
Net gain on sales and calls of securities -- 101,767 114,290
Net gain on sales of loans 58,486 46,083 --
Net gain (loss) on the sale of other real estate owned (1,567) (389) 137,132
Income from bank-owned life insurance 246,774 261,080 215,233
ATM fees 223,118 162,247 89,404
Other 255,563 277,329 110,401
Total noninterest income $ 2,076,243 “§ 2014478 $ 1472555
Noninterest Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits $ 4,553,107 $ 4,395,791 $ 3,804,611
Occupancy 436,162 372,669 333,693
Equipment 810,273 878,549 791,409
Other 2,275,328 2,355,994 2,288,858
Total noninterest expenses $ 8,074,870 $§ 8,003,003 $ 7,218571
Income before income taxes $ 4,162,923 $ 3,148,807 $ 3,282,883
Provision for income taxes 1,060,344 674,582 750,785
Net income $ 3,102,579 $ 2,474,225 $ 2,532,098




CITIZENS BANCORP OF VIRGINIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Balance at December 31, 2002
Compreheasive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive (loss):
Unrealized (losses) on securities available
for sale, net of deferred taxes of $363,490
Reclassification adjustment, net of
income taxes of $38,859
Other comprehensive (loss), net of taxes
Total comprehensive income
Cash dividends declared ($.37 per share)
Balance at December 31, 2003
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive (loss):
Unrealized (losses) on securities available
for sale, net of deferred taxes of $74,612
Reclassification adjustment, net of
income taxes of $34,601
Other comprehensive (loss), net of taxes
Total comprehensive income
Shares repurchased
Cash dividends declared (3.71 per share)
Balance at December 31, 2004
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive (loss), net of taxes
unrealized (losses) on securities available
for sale, net of deferred taxes of $313,082
Total comprehensive income
Cash dividends declared ($.61 per share)
Balance at December 31, 2005

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Accumulated
Other
Compre-
Additional hensive Compre-
Common Paid-In Retained Income hensive
Stock Capital Earaings (Loss) Income Total
$ 1,224000 § 193,240 § 28,993,185 § 818,868 s 31,229,293
-- -- 2,532,098 -« $ 2,532,098 2,532,098
-- -- -~ -- (705,599) -
-- -- .- -- (75,431) --
-- -- -- (781,030) $  (781,030) (781,030)
- -- -- -- $ 1,751,068 --
-- -- (905,760) -- (905,760)
$ 1224000 § 193,240 § 30,619,523 § 37,838 $ 32,074,601
-- -- 2,474,225 -- § 2474235 2,474,225
-- -- -- -- (144,835) --
-- -- -- -- (67,166) --
.- -- -- (212,001) $  (212,001) (212,001)
.- -- -- -« § 2,262,224 -
(3,625) (143,820) (147,445)
-- - - (1,736,251) - - (1,736,251)
$ 1220375 § 49,420 § 31,357,497 $ (174,i63) $ 32,453,129
.- -- 3,102,579 -- $ 3,102,579 3,102,579
-- -- -- (607,748) (607,748) (607,748)
-- -- -- -- $ 2,494,831 --
-- -- (1,488,853) -- {1.488,853)
$ 1,220,375 % 49420 §$ 32971223 §$ (781,911) $ 33,459,107

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-4



CITIZENS BANCORP OF VIRGINIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Provision for loan losses

Net gain on sales and calls of securities

Net gain on sales of loans

Origination of loans held for sale

Proceeds from sales of loans

Net (gain) loss on sale of other real estate owned

Net amortization of securities

Deferred tax expense (benefit)

Changes in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) in accrued interest receivable
(Increase) in other assets
Increase in accrued interest payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Activity in available for sale securities:

Sales and calls

Maturities and prepayments

Purchases
(Purchase) redemption of restricted securities
Net (increase) in loans
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance
Purchases of land, premises and equipment
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned

Net cash (used in) investing activities

2005 2004 2003
$ 3,102,579 $ 2,474,225 $ 2,532,098
742,517 692,591 546,840
208,000 703,000 250,000
-- (101,767) (114,290)
(58,486) (46,083) --
(4,895,100) (3,627,250) .-
4,953,586 3,673,333 .-
1,567 389 (137,132)
98,554 132,218 219,475
189,763 (6,708) 375,338
(197,123) (51,063) (60,842)
(308,332) (315,306) (400,421)
199,610 (48,956) (428,075)
2,601 383,503 (546,229)
$ 4,039,736 $ 3862126 $ 2236762
$ 808,000 $ 17,9468  $ 59,923,070
1,226,578 4,619,095 13,093,600
(3,943,743) (8,965,066) (62,335,276)
(52,400) 737,800 (299,250)
(3,400,833) (23,216,995) (9,234,129)
-- .- (6,000,000)
(490,426) (2,747,200) (2,162,314)
77,331 91,349 821,818

$  (5,775,493)

$ (11,534,131)

3 (6,192,481)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CITIZENS BANCORP OF VIRGINIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

2005 2004 2003
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in deposits $ (12,422,131) $ 9,277,936 $ (2,481,330)
Net increase in short-terin borrowings 3,272,069 1,264,007 --
Dividends paid (1,464,446) (1,370,138) (905,760)
Repurchase of common stock - _(147,445) --
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities $ (10,614,508) $ 9,024,360 $ (3,387,090)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (12,350,265) $ 1,352,355 $ (7,342,809)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning of year 21,580,530 20,228,175 27,570,984
End of year $ 9,230,265 $ 21,580,530 $ 20,228,175
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 4,037,780 $ 3,661,201 $ 4,884915
Income taxes b 822,044 3 553,000 3 461,500
Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing
and Financing Activities
Other real estate acquired in settlement of loans $ 278,898 $ 91,737 $ 65,406
Unrealized (losses) on securities available for sale $  (920,830) $ (321,214 $ (1,183,379)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1.

Business

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CITIZENS BANCORP OF VIRGINIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

On December 10, 2003, the stockholders of Citizens Bank and Trust Company voted in favor of a merger to
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc., which became a newly formed
one-bank holding company.

Upon consummation of the reorganization effective December 18, 2003, each outstanding common share of
Citizens Bank and Trust Company was exchanged for one share of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc.
common stock, par value $0.50 per share. The exchange of shares was a tax-free transaction for federal

income tax purposes. Financial statements for prior periods are identical to the financial statements of the
Bank.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc. (the
“Company”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Citizens Bank and Trust Company (the “Bank™). All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company conducts the general business of a commercial bank. The Company is chartered under the
laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia and is a member of the Federal Reserve System. The Company’s
primary trade areas are in the Virginia counties of Nottoway, Amelia, Prince Edward, Chesterfield, and
Colonial Heights. The Company offers traditional lending and deposit products to businesses and
individuals.

Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates
that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the
allowance for loan losses.

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial
statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances due from
banks, interest-bearing deposits in banks and federal funds sold, all of which mature within ninety days.
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Securities

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as “held
to maturity” and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not classified as held to maturity, including equity
securities with readily determinable fair values, are classified as “available for sale” and recorded at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income.

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms
of the securities. Declines in the fair value of held to maturity and available for sale securities below their
cost that are deemed to be other than temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses. In estimating
other than temporary impairment losses, management considers (1) the length of time and the extent to
which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer,
and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are
recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method.

Restricted Securities

The Company is required to maintain an investment in the capital stock of certain correspondent banks. No
ready market exists for this stock, and it has no quoted market value. The Company’s investment in these
stocks is recorded at cost.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or
fair value. Mortgage loans held for sale are sold with the mortgage servicing rights released by the
Company.

The Company enters into commitments to originate certain mortgage loans whereby the interest rate on the
loans is determined prior to funding (rate lock commitments). Rate lock commitments on mortgage loans
that are intended to be sold are considered to be derivatives. The period of time between issuance of a loan
commitment and closing and the sale of the loan generally ranges from thirty to ninety days. The Company
protects itself from changes in interest rates through the use of best efforts forward delivery commitments,
whereby the Company commits to sell a loan at the time the borrower commits to an interest rate with the
intent that the buyer has assumed interest rate risk on the loan. As a result, the Company is not exposed to
losses nor will it realize significant gains related to its rate lock commitments due to changes in interest rates.
The correlation between the rate lock commitments and the best efforts contracts is very high due to their
similarity. Because of this high correlation, no gain or loss occurs on the rate lock commitments.

Loans

The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to customers. A substantial portion of the
loan portfolio is represented by mortgage loans in the Virginia counties of Nottoway, Amelia, Prince
Edward, Chesterfield and the City of Colonial Heights. The ability of the Company’s debtors to honor their
contracts is dependent upon the reat estate and general economic conditions in this area.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-
off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge-offs, the
allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Interest income is accrued on
the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and
recognized as an adjustment of the related loan yield using the interest method.
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The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days
delinquent unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Other personal loans are typically
charged off no later than 180 days past due. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at an
-earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed in a nonaccrual or charged off status are
reversed against interest income in the period when the loan’s status changes to nonaccrual or the loan is
charged off. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until
qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest
amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense. Loans
are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that collectibility of the
principal is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses relating to
specifically identified loans, as well as probable credit losses inherent in the balance of the loan portfolio,
based on an evaluation of the collectibility of existing loans and prior loss experience. This evaluation also
takes into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, overall
portfolio quality, review of specific problem loans, and current economic conditions that may affect the
borrower’s ability to pay. This evaluation does not include the effects of expected losses on specific loans or
groups of loans that are related to future events or expected changes in economic conditions. While
management uses the best information available to make its evaluation, future adjustments to the allowance
may be necessary if there are significant changes in economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies,
as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Company’s allowance for loan
losses, and may require the Company to make additions to the allowance based on their judgment about
information available to them at the time of their examinations.

The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The specific component relates to
loans that are classified as either doubtful, substandard or special mention. For such loans that are also
classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or
observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The general
component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative
factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s
estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision
inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses
in the portfolio.

A loan is impaired when it is probable, based on current information and events, that the Company will be
unable to collect all contractual principal and interest payments due in accordance with the terms of the loan
agreement. Impaired loans are measured on an individual basis for commercial and construction loans based
on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or, as a
practical expedient, .at the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent. The amount of impairment, if any, and any subsequent changes are included in the
allowance for loan losses.

Large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly,
the Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment
disclosures.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumnulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortization expense are computed by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Estimated useful lives of the assets range from 3 to 39 years. Major improvements are capitalized while
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Foreclosed Assets

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at the lower
of carrying value or fair value at the date of foreclosure, thereby establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent
to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower
of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in the
valuation allowance are included in net expenses from foreclosed assets. The Company had $200,000 in
foreclosed assets at December 31, 2005 and no foreclosed assets at December 31, 2004,

Income Taxes
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the balance sheet method. Under this method,
the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences
between the book and tax bases of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities and gives current
recognition to changes in tax rates and laws.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan
The Company provides a noncontributory pension plan covering substantially all of the Company’s

employees who are eligible as to age and length of service. The Company funds pension costs in accordance
with the funding provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act.

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in
net income. Although certain changes in assets and labilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on
available for sale securities, are reported as a separate component in the equity section of the balance sheet,
such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.

Earnings Per Share
Earnings per share are calculated based on the weighted-average number of common shares and common
stock equivalents outstanding. The Company has no dilutive or potentially dilutive common stock
equivalents. For the years ending December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the weighted-average common shares
outstanding were 2,440,750, 2,445,494 and 2,448,000 respectively.

Advertising
The Company follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as incurred.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period balances to conform to the current year presentation.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2005, FASB Staff Position (FSP) 115-1 “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment
and Its Application to Certain Investments” was issued. The FSP addresses the determination as to when an
investment is considered impaired, whether that impairment is other than temporary, and the measurement of
an impairment loss. This FSP also includes accounting considerations subsequent to the recognition of an
other-than-temporary impairment and requires certain disclosures about unrealized losses that have not been
recognized as other-than-temporary impairments. The guidance in this FSP amends FASB Statement No.
115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” and APB Opinion No. 18, “The
Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock™. The FSP applies to investments in debt
and equity securities and cost-method investments. The application guidance within the FSP includes items
to consider in determining whether an investment is impaired, in evaluating if an impairment is other than
temporary and recognizing impairment losses equal to the difference between the investment’s cost and its
fair value when an impairment is determined. The FSP is required for all reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2005. Earlier application is permitted. The Compnay does not anticipate the amendment will
have a material effect on its financial statements.

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued Statement No. 154, (“SFAS
No. 154”) “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - A Replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB
Statement No. 3.” The new standard changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a
change in accounting principle. Among other changes, SFAS No. 154 requires that a voluntary change in
accounting principle be applied retrospectively with all prior period financial statements presented on the
new accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to do so. SFAS No. 154 also provides that (1) a change
in method of depreciating or amortizing a long-lived nonfinancial asset be accounted for as a change in
estimate (prospectively) that was effected by a change in accounting principle, and (2) correction of errors in
previously issued financial statements should be termed a “restatement. “ The new standard is effective for
accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005, The
Company does not anticipate this revision will have a material effect on its financial statements.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement No. 123 (Revised
2004) (SFAS No. 123R) “Share-Based Payment”, which requires that the compensation cost relating to
share-based payment transactions be recognized in financial statements. SFAS No. 123R replaces SFAS No.
123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees.” Share-based compensation arrangements include share options, restricted share
plans, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights and employee share purchase plans. SFAS No.
123R requires all share-based payments to employees to be valued using a fair value method on the date of
grant and expensed based on that fair value over the applicable vesting period. SFAS No. 123R also amends
SFAS No. 95 “Statement of Cash Flows” requiring the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized
compensation cost be reported as financing instead of operating cash flows. The Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB 107”), which expresses the SEC’s
views regarding the interaction between SFAS No. 123R and certain SEC rules and regulations.
Additionally, SAB No. 107 provides guidance related to share-based payment transactions for public
companies. The Company will be required to apply SFAS No. 123R as of the annual reporting period that
begins after September 15, 2005.

In December 2003, the Accounting Standards Executive Committee of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants issued Statement of Position 03-3, “Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities
Acquired in a Transfer” (“SOP 03-3"). SOP 03-3 addresses accounting for differences between contractual
cash flows and cash flows expected to be collected from an investor’s initial investment in loans or debt
securities (loans) acquired in a transfer if those differences are attributable, at least in part, to credit quality.
Tt includes loans purchased by the Company or acquired in business combinations. SOP 03-3 does not apply
to loans originated by the Company. The Company adopted the provisions of SOP 03-3 effective January 1,
2005. The initial implementation had no material effect on the Company’s financial statements.
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Note 2. Securities

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale, with gross unrealized gains and losses,

follows:
December 31, 2005
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value

U.S. Government

and federal agency $ 19433461 $ -- § (673,653) $ 18,759,808
State and municipal 15,822,905 67,912 (241,538) 15,649,279
Mortgage-backed 9,557,418 7,928 (203,696) 9,361,650
Corporate 3,624,768 - - (141,666) 3,483,102

$ 48438552 $ 75840 $ (1,260,553) $ 47,253,839

December 31, 2004
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized ‘Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains {Losses) Value

U.S. Government

and federal agency $ 18,434080 § 5,808 $ (298,988) § 18,140,900
State and municipal 16,133,991 246,321 (119,776) 16,260,536
Mortgage-backed 8,377,695 21,728 (56,826) 8,342,597
Corporate 3,682,175 - - (62,150) 3,620,025

$ 46627941 $§ 273857 § (537,740) § 46,364,058

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale by contractual maturity at December 31,
2005 follows. Maturities may differ from contractual maturities in mortgage-backed securities because the
mortgages underlying the securities may be called or repaid without any penalties.

Amortized Fair

Cost Value
Maturing within one year $ 2078220 $ 2,087,526
Maturing after one year through five years 18,340,894 17,877,884
Maturing after five years through ten years 16,962,020 16,481,309
Maturing after ten years 1,500,000 1,445,470
Mortgage-backed securities 9,557,418 9,361,650

$ 48438,552 § 47,253,839
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Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2005 and 2004, aggregated

by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position,
follows:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
2005 Value (Loss) Value (Loss)
(In Thousands)
U.S. Government
and federal agency h) 3,648  § (66) % 15,112 § (608)
State and municipal 6,623 (93) 3,587 (149)
Mortgage-backed 4,918 (65) 4,216 (139)
Corporate 518 (18) 2,965 (123)
Total temporarily
impaired securities $ 15,707 $ 242) § 25,880 $ (1,019)
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
2004 Value (Loss) Value (Loss)
(In Thousands)
U.S. Government
and federal agency 5 6917 $ €9 $ 6,790 § (210)
State and municipal 3,101 (73) 2,294 47)
Mortgage-backed 4,486 29) 1,448 (28)
Corporate 2,322 (30) 1,298 (32)
Total temporarily
impaired securities $ 16,826 3 221) 8 11,830 3 (317)

The unrealized losses in the investment portfolio as of December 31, 2005 are considered temporary and are
a result of general market fluctuations that occur daily. The unrealized losses are from 69 securities that are
all of investment grade, backed by insurance, U.S. government agency guarantees, or the full faith and credit
of local municipalities throughout the United States. Market prices change daily and are affected by
conditions beyond the control of the Company. Investment decisions are made by the management group of -
the Company and reflect the overall liquidity and strategic asset/liability objectives of the Company.
Management analyzes the securities portfolio frequently and manages the portfolio to provide an overall
positive impact to the Company’s income statemnent and balance sheet. As management has the ability and
intent to hold debt securities for the foreseeable future, no declines are deemed to be other than temporary.

Securities having carrying values of $16,130,126 and $11,430,595 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required by law.

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, proceeds from sales and calls of securities
amounted to $808,000, $17,946,886, and $59,923,070, respectively. Gross realized gains amounted to
$147,827 for 2004 and $114,290 for 2003. There were no gross realized gains for 2005. Gross realized
losses amounted to $46,060 in 2004, There were no gross realized losses during 2005 or 2003. The tax
provision applicable to these net realized gains amounted to $34,601 for 2004 and $38,859 for 2003.
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Note3. Loans

A summary of the balances of loans follows:

December 31,
2005 2004
(In Thousands)

Mortgage loans on real estate:

Commercial $ 54,549 $ 50,624

Residential 1-4 family 92,158 93,002

Construction 11,888 10,767
Commercial 23,884 26,464
Consumer installment 17,887 17,381

Total loans $ 200,366 3 198,238
Less: allowance for loan losses 1,954 2,740
Loans, net $ 198,412 $ 195,498
Note 4. Allowance for Loan Losses
An analysis of the allowance for loan losses follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
(In Thousands)

Balance, beginning $ 2,740 $ 2,371 5 2,925
Provision for loan losses 208 703 250
Loans charged off (1,387) (468) (918)
Recoveries of loans previously.

charged off 393 134 114
Balance, ending $ 1,954 3 2,740 3 2,371
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Impaired loans with
a vajuation allowance
Impaired loans without
a valuation allowance

Total impaired loans

Valuation allowance related
impaired loans

Average investment in
impaired loans

Interest income recognized

Premises and Equipment

Land
Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Construction in progress

Accumulated depreciation

A summary of information pertaining to impaired loans follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
{In Thousands)
3 1,366 3 1,705 3 1,676
3 1,366 $ 1,705 $ 1,676
3 306 3 1,032 b 639
3 1,421 3 2,690 S 2,083
$ - - $ -- 3 .-
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A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment follows:

December 31,
2005 2004
(In Thousands)
$ 1,398 $ 1,398
6,448 5,639
4,210 4,614
139 822
$ 12,195 $ 12,473
(5,021 (5,046)
$ 7,174 $ 7,427

Nonaccrual loans excluded from the impairment disclosure above under SFAS No. 114 totaled $329,041,
$483,534 and $295,925 at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Income on nonaccrual and
impaired loans under the original terms would have been approximately $145,418, $55,792 and $343,431 for
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 totaled $742,517, $692,591
and $546,840, respectively.




Note 6.

Note 7.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to the terms of a lease agreement pertaining to bank premises, future minimum rent commitments
are as follows:

2006 5 41,230
2007 42,055
2008 42,896
2009 14,393
b 140,574
Deposits

The aggregate amounts of time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more at December 31, 2005 and
2004 were $42,970,172 and $53,824,536, respectively.

At December 31, 2005, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

{In thousands)
2006 3 59,368
2007 34,975
2008 14,354
2009 11,071
2010 6,891

$ 126,659

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, overdraft demand deposits reclassified to loans totaled $97,876 and
$176,065, respectively.

Short Term Borrowings

Short term borrowings include customer deposit balances that are invested overnight into an investment
sweeps product. The balances held in this deposit-alternative investment vehicle are not insured by the
FDIC; however the Company pledges U.S. government securities for the balances held in these accounts.

The Company also has available lines of credit with several correspondent banks totaling $84,900,000. No
amounts were drawn at December 31, 2005 or 2004.
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Income Taxes

Allocation of income tax expense between current and deferred portions is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Current tax expense 3 870,581 3 681,290 3 375,447
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 189,763 (6,708) 375,338

$ 1,060,344 $ 674,582 $ 750,785

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax rates are
summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Computed "expected” tax expense $ 1,415,394 $ 1,070,594 $ 1,116,180
Tax-exempt income (286,158) (323,507) (287,022)
Other, net (68,892) (72,505) (78,373)

3 1,060,344 3 674,582 3 750,785

The components of the net deferred tax asset, included in other assets, are as follows:

Net unrealized loss on

securities available for sale 402,803 89,721
Other real estate 3,830 - -
Deferred tax assets $ 871,632 £ 861,491
Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred loan fees 3 196,667 $ 182,316
Depreciation 234,057 238,018
Prepaid pension 18,648 15,967
Discount accretion on securities 4,086 30,117
Other - 100,218
Deferred tax liabilities $ 453,458 3 566,636
Net deferred tax assets $ 418,174 3 294,855
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Employee Benefit Plans

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Information pertaining to the activity in the defined benefit pension plan is as follows:

Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss
Plan amendments
Benefits paid

Benefit obligation, ending

Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets, ending

Funded Status
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service cost

Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost

included in other assets (liabilities)

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003
$ 2,926,291 $ 2,325,737 $ 4,077468
270,118 211,129 154,311
182,171 156,208 155,059
110,172 256,689 348,853
-- -- (1,938,718)
(57,251) (23,472) (471,236)
$ 3,431,501 $ 2,926,291 $ 2,325,737
$ 2,481,408 $ 2,055,327 $ 2,082,706
266,226 197,723 242,819
259,714 251,830 201,038
(57,251) (23,472) (471,236)
$ 2,950,097 $ 2,481,408 $ 2,055,327
3 (481,404) § (444,883) § (270,410)
2,184,160 2,236,691 2,108,362
~ (1,647,910) (1,744,846) (1,841,782)
3 54,846 $ 46,962 b (3,830)

$2,214,122 at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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The following table provides the components of the net periodic benefit cost for the plan:

2005 2004 2003
Service cost $ 270,118 3 211,129 $ 154,311
Interest cost ' 182,171 156,208 155,059
Expected return on plan assets (196,097) (163,152) (161,740)
Amortization of prior service cost (96,936) {96,936) {96,936)
Recognized net actuarial loss 92,574 93,789 85,617
Net periodic benefit cost 3 251,830 $ 201,038 $ 136,311

The weighted-average assumptions used in the measurement of the Company’s benefit obligation are

shown in the following table:
2005 2004 2003
Discount rate 6.00% 6.25% 6.75%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The weighted-average assumptions used in the measurement of the Company’s net periodic benefit cost

are shown in the following table:

2005 2004 2003
Discount rate 6.25% 6.75% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Long-Term Rate of Return

The plan sponsor selects the expected long-term rate-of-return-on-assets assumption in consultation with
their investment advisors and actuary. This rate is intended to reflect the average rate of earnings expected
to be earned on the funds invested or to be invested to provide plan benefits. Historical performance is
reviewed, especially with respect to real rates of return (net of inflation), for the major asset classes held or
anticipated to be held by the trust, and for the trust itself. Undue weight is not given to recent experience
that may not continue over the measurement period, with higher significance placed on current forecasts of

future long-term economic conditions.
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Because assets are held in a qualified trust, anticipated returns are not reduced for taxes. Further, solely
for this purpose, the plan is assumed to continue in force and not terminate during the period during which
assets are invested. However, consideration is given to the potential impact of current and future
investment policy, cash flow into and out of the trust, and expenses (both investment and nen-investment)
typically paid from plan assets (to the extent such expenses are not explicitly estimated within periodic
cost).

Asset Allecation

The pension plan’s weighted-average asset allocations at September 30, 2005 and 2004, by asset category
are as follows:

Plan Assets at September 30,

2005 2004
Asset Category
Mutual funds - fixed income 40% 40%
Mutual funds - equity 56% 56%
Other 4%, 4%
Total 100% 100%

The trust fund is sufficiently diversified to maintain a reasonable level of risk without imprudently
sacrificing return, with a targeted asset allocation of 50% fixed income and 50% equities. The investment
manager selects investment fund managers with demonstrated experience and expertise, and funds with
demonstrated historical performance, for the implementation of the plan’s investment strategy. The
investment manager will consider both actively and passively managed investment strategies and will
allocate funds across the asset classes to develop an efficient investment structure.

It is the responsibility of the trustee to administer the investments of the trust within reasonable costs,
being careful to avoid sacrificing quality. These costs include, but are not limited to, management and
custodial fees, consulting fees, transaction costs and other administrative costs chargeable to the trust.

The Company expects to contribute $250,000 to its pension plan in 2006.

Estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are as follows:

2006 $ 23,472
2007 37,924
2008 39,682
2009 54,203
2010 60,148
2011-2015 774,816

s 990245
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Plan Amendment

On March 1, 2003, the Company amended its defined benefit pension plan. The plan’s revised formula for
retirement benefits decreased payments from 1.65% to 1.00% of the employee’s final five-years® average
earnings. Other provisions including length of service and covered compensation were also changed.

The effect of the amendment is a decrease in the benefit obligation as seen in the table above. This
unrecognized prior service cost is being amortized over 20 years.

Deferred Compensation Agreements

Effective October 1, 2005, the Board of Directors approved the termination of the deferred compensation
plan. The accrued liability balance at the termination date was $64,873. Upon termination of the plan,
each participant received a distribution of the accrued benefit that totaled $38,770, with the remaining
liability totaling $26,103 being credited to non-interest expense. Deferred compensation expense was
$136,427 and $78,169 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. During 2004, the
Company reversed $162,535 in accrued benefits on participants no longer employed by the Company.

401(k) Plan

During 2003, the Company instituted a 401(k) plan whereby substantially all employees participate in the
plan after completing threc months of service. Employees may contribute a percentage of their
compensation subject to certain limits based on federal tax laws. The Company makes matching
contributions equal to 50 percent of the first 6 percent of an employee’s compensation contributed to the
plan. Matching contributions vest to the employee equally over a three-year period. For the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 expense attributable to the plan amounted to $60,810, $65,471 and
$29,730, respectively.

Note 10. Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has granted loans to principal officers and directors and
their affiliates amounting to $493,000 and $752,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. During
the year ended December 31, 2005, total principal additions were $407,000 and total principal payments and
charges were $666,000.
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Note 12.
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Other Expenses

The principal components of other expenses in the statements of income are:

2005 2004 2003
Accounting fees $ 159,731 $ 186,368 $ 104,496
Bank franchise tax 192,641 179,545 259,296
Consulting fees 49,246 138,993 89,428
Directors fees 124,000 126,100 96,985
Data processing services 176,260 227,640 226,479
Legal fees 99,966 160,552 226,676
Marketing 116,070 116,429 205,104
Stationery and supplies 178,645 216,148 203,838

Other (includes no items
in excess of 1% of total
revenues) 1,178,769 1,004,219 876,556

$ 2,275,328 $ 2,355,994 $ 22883858

Off-Balance Sheet Activities

The Company is a party to credit related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal
course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and commercial letters of credit. Such commitments
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in
the balance sheets.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these commitments. The
Company follows the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for on-balance-sheet
instruments.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the following financial instruments were outstanding whose contract
amounts represent credit risk:

2005 2004
(In Thousands)
Commitments to extend credit $ 22,804 $ 28,768
Standby letters of credit 559 420
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Note 13.

Note 14.

Note 15.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. The commitments for equity lines of credit may
expire without being drawn upon. Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements. The amount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary by the Company, is
based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer.

Unfunded commitments under commercial lines-of-credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft protection
agreements are commitments for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers. These lines-of-
credit are uncollateralized and usually do not contain a specified maturity date and may not be drawn upon to
the total extent to which the Company is committed.

Standby letters-of-credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance
of a customer to a third party. Those letters-of-credit are primarily issued to support public and private
borrowing arrangements. Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within one year. The
credit risk involved in issuing letters-of-credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan
facilities to customers. The Bank generally holds collateral supporting those commitments if deemed
necessary.

Restrictions on Cash and Due From Banks

The Federal Reserve Bank requires banks to maintain cash reserves against certain categories of deposit
liabilities. At December 31, 2005, the aggregate amount of daily average required reserves was
approximately $319,000. The Bank is also required to maintain certain required reserve balances with a
correspondent bank. Those required balances were $1,000,000 at December 31, 2005.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company has a diversified loan portfolio consisting of commercial, real estate and consumer
(installment) loans. Substantially all of the Company’s customers are residents or operate business ventures
in its market area consisting of Nottoway, Amelia, Prince Edward, Chesterfield and adjacent counties.
Therefore, a substantial portion of its debtors’ ability to honor their contracts and the Company’s ability to
realize the value of any underlying collateral, if needed, is influenced by the economic conditions in this
market area.

The Company maintains a portion of its cash balances with several financial institutions located in its market
area. Accounts at each institution are secured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $100,000.
Uninsured balances were approximately $1,446,000 at December 31, 2005.

Minimum Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate
certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have
a direct material effect on the Company’s and the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-
sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classifications are
also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.
Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.
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Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the
Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average
assets (as defined). Management believes, that as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company and the
Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2005, the most recent notification from the Federal Reserve Bank categorized the Bank
as well capitalized under the framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized,
an institution must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set
forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have
changed the Bank’s category.

The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 are

presented in the table below:

Minimum
To Be Weli
Capitalized Under
Minimum Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Requirement Action Provisions
Amount _Ratio Amount _Ratio Amount Ratio
{Amount in Thousands)
As of December 31, 2005:
Total Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets
Consolidated $ 36,195 19.8% $ 14,607 8.0% N/A
Bank § 28,380 15.7% $ 14,503 8.0% 18,129 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets
Consolidated $ 34,241 18.8% $ 7,304 4.0% N/A
Bank $ 26426 14.6% § 7,251 4.0% 10,877 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital to
Average Assets
Consolidated $ 34,241 12.3% $ 11,098 4.0% N/A
Bank $ 26,426 9.7% $ 11,884 40% 3 13,605 5.0%
As of December 31, 2004:
Total Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets
Consolidated $ 34,879 19.4% $ 14,373 8.0% N/A
Bank $ 26,870 15.1% $ 14,279 80% § 17,849 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets
Consolidated $ 32,627 18.2% $ 7,186 4.0% N/A
Bank $ 24,633 13.8% $ 7,140 4.0% § 10,709 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital to
Average Assets
Consolidated $ 32,627 11.6% $ 11,291 4.0% N/A
Bank $ 24,633 8.9% $ 11,039 40% $ 13,799 5.0%
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Note 16. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Interest Rate Risk

The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged between willing
parties, other than in a forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices.
However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for the Company's various financial
instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using
present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions
used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates
may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument. SFAS No. 107 excludes certain financial
instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate
fair value amounts presented may not necessarily represent the underlying fair value of the Company.

The Company in estimating fair value disclosures for financial instruments used the following methods and
assumptions:

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts of cash and short-term instruments approximate fair
values.

Securities: Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices, where available. If

quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable
instruments.

Restricted Securities: The carrying value of restricted stock approximates fair value based on the
redemption provisions of the respective entity.

Loans: For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair
values are based on carrying values. Fair values for certain mortgage loans (e.g., one-to-four family
residential) and other consumer loans are based on quoted market prices of similar loans sold in conjunction
with securitization transactions, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics. Fair values for other loans
(e.g., commercial real estate and investment property mortgage loans, commercial and industrial loans) are
estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with
similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.

Deposits: The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and non-interest checking, passbook
savings, and certain types of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amounts payable on
demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of variable-rate, fixed-
term money market accounts and certificates of deposit approximate their fair values at the reporting date.
Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that
applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly
maturities on time deposits.

Short term borrowings: The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased and other short term borrowings
maturing within 90 days approximate their fair values.

Accrued Interest: The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value.

Off-Balance-Sheet Instruments: Fair values for off-balance-sheet, credit-related financial instruments are
based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of
the agreements and the counterparties® credit standing. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the fair value of
loan commitments and standby letters of credit was deemed to be immaterial.




Note 17.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The estimated fair values, and related carrying or notional amounts, of the Company’s financial instruments
are as follows:

Decerrber 31, 2005 Decerrber 31, 2004
Carying Fair Carrying Far
Amourt Vale Aot Value
(in Thousands)
Finarcial assets:
Cash and cash equivalerts $ 9230 § 9230 § 21581 $ 21581
Seaurities available for sale 47254 47254 46,364 46,364
Restricted securities 64 634 631 631
Loans, net 198412 195,230 195498 194,510
Accrued interest receivable 1,706 1,706 1,509 1,509
Finencial lizbilities:
Deposits $ 233277 § 221429 0§ 24569 3§ 240790
Short tamborrowings $ 453 % 4536 % 124 8 1264
Accrued interest payable 84 814 675 675

The Company assumes interest rate risk (the risk that general interest rate levels will change) as a result of its
normal operations. As a result, the fair values of the Company’s financial instruments will change when
interest rate levels change and that change may be either favorable or unfavorable to the Company.
Management attempts to match maturities of assets and liabilities to the extent believed necessary to
minimize interest rate risk. However, borrowers with fixed rate obligations are less likely to prepay in a
rising rate environment and more likely to prepay in a falling rate environment. Conversely, depositors who
are receiving fixed rates are more likely to withdraw funds before maturity in a rising rate environment and
less likely to do so in a falling rate environment. Management monitors rates and maturities of assets and
liabilities and attempts to minimize interest rate risk by adjusting terms of new loans and deposits and by
investing in securities with terms that mitigate the Company’s overall interest rate risk.

Condensed Parent Company Financial Statements

The following parent company accounting policies should be read in conjunction with the related condensed
balance sheets, statements of income, and statements of cash flows.

The investment in subsidiary is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The parent company
and its subsidiary file a consolidated federal income tax return. The subsidiary’s individual tax provision
and liability are stated as if it filed a separate return and any benefits or detriments of filing the consolidated
tax retum are absorbed by the parent company.

The parent company’s principal assets are its investment in its wholiy-owned subsidiary. Dividends from
the Bank are the primary source of funds for the parent company. The payment of dividends by the Bank is
restricted by various statutory limitations. Banking regulations also prohibit extensions of credit by the Bank
to the parent company unless appropriately secured by assets.
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Balance Sheets (Condensed)
December 31, 2005 and 2004

Assets 2005 2004
Cash $ 2,991,276 $ 2,548,101
Investment in subsidiary 25,744,388 24,493,071
Securities available for sale at fair market value 4941917 5,200,984
Other assets 206,226 682,585

Total assets $ 33,883,807 $ 32,924,741

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Other liabilities $ 424,700 $ 471,612
Stockholders' equity 33,459,107 32,453,129
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 33,883,807 $ 32,924,741

Statements of Income (Condensed)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the
Period from December 18, 2003 (Inception) to December 31, 2003

2005 2004 2003
Dividends from subsidiary $ 1,500,000 $ -- 10,000,000
Interest income on investments 165,317 174,364 252
Total income $ 1,665,317 $ 174,364 10,000,252

Noninterest expense - other $ 460,421 $ 347835 19,539
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in undistributed

(distributions in excess of) earnings of subsidiary $ 1,204,896 $ (173,471 9,980,713
Allacated income tax benefit 104,840 63,456 6,558
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed

(distributions in excess of) earnings of subsidiary $ 1,309,736 $ (110,015) 9,987,271
Equity in undistributed (distributions in excess of)

earnings of subsidiary 1,792,843 2,584,240 (7,455,173)
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Statements of Cash Flows (Condensed)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the
Period from December 18, 2003 (Inception) to December 31, 2003

2005 2004 2004
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 3,102,579 $ 2,474,225 2,532,098
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Equity in (undistributed) distributed in
excess of earnings of subsidiary (1,792,843) (2,584,240) 7,455,173
Changes in other assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in other assets 460,898 (634,488) (30,837)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (71,316) 105,500 - -
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $§ 1,699,318 $  (639,003) 9,956,434
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of securities $ -- $ (2,693,434) (2,987,328)
Calls and prepayments of securities 208,303 429,015 --
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $ 208,303 $ (2,264,419 (2,987,328)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repurchase of common stock $ -- $ (147,445) --
Dividends paid (1,464,446) (1,370,138) -
Net cash (used in) financing activities $ (1,464,446) $ (1,517,583) --
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 475,896 $ (4,421,005) 6,969,106

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Beginning of year

2,548,101 6,969,106
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Exhibit No.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

31

32

21.1

311

32.1

Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to
exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K, filed February 6, 2004).

Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.2 to the
Company’s Form 8-K, filed February 6, 2004).

Subsidiary of the Company (filed herewith).

Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) (filed herewith).

Statement of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. §1350 (filed herewith).
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

1, Joseph D. Borgerding, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’'s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures
and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

{¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant's board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2006

Joseph D. Borgerding
Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

1, Ronald E. Baron, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash fiows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsibie for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures
and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(9] Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal controt
over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal contro! over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

{b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2006

Sutd £ Bue

Ronald £. Baron
Principal Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1
7 STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350
In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2005 (the
“Form 10-K”) of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc. (the “Company”), |, Joseph D. Borgerding, principal
executive officer of the Company, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(a) the Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

{b) the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the periods presented in the Form
10-K.

By: Date: March 30, 2006

Joseph D. Borgerding
Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2
STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2005 (the
“Form 10-K") of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, inc. (the “Company”), I, Ronald E. Baron, principal financial
officer of the Company, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(@) the Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(b) the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the

financial condition and resuits of operations of the Company as of and for the periods presented in the Form
10-K.

By: Date: March 30, 2006

Ronald E. Baron
Principal Financial Officer




Valued Employees of Citizens Bank and Trust Company:

30 + Years of Service

C. B. Cordle, Jr.*
Joyce C. Hawkins
Janice P. Jones
Rhonda W. Kincer
Lynn K. Shekleton
James M. Snead

Vice President/Fixed Assets & Operations
Dealer Division Loan Assistant

Vice President/Risk Manager

Vice President/Marketing Manager & Branch Operations
Senior Vice President/Human Resources

Vice President/Loan Officer

20 to 29 Years of Service

Mary H. Bishop

Sue C. Cobbs
Janet W. Eanes

Theresa W. Hardaway

Cynthia T. Moore
Rebecca J. Redford
Tamra M. Reekes
Mildred C. Shepard

Assistant Vice President/ Loan Services Manager

& Mortgage Underwriter

Receptionist

Computer/Proof Operator

Branch Support Specialist

Vice President/Branch Manager

Banking Officer/Operations Manager

Assistant Vice President/Corporate Support Services
Computer/Proof Operator

10 to 19 Years of Service

Sally C. Beale
Tammy B. Bievins
Anita N. Bradford
Ellis G. Corley
Shirley E. Cousar
Cathy R. Dews
Joyce M. Dooley
Robin E. Gough
Barbara W. Harver
Rhonda L. Hodge
Dianne H. Hudson
Alice M. Hurte
Deottie L. Jones
Judith C. Miracle
S. Gail Moon
Nancy Blair Myers
Kelly W. Norton
Mary E. Rhodes
Melissa M. Roberts
Gloria F. Robertson
Lisa H. Whitehead

ATM Coordinator

Banking Officer/Operations Manager
Banking Officer/Operations Manager
Courier

Teller

ACH Coordinator

Teller

Assistant Vice President/Branch Manager
Customer Service Representative

Loan Processor

Human Resource Assistant

Customer Service Representative
Banking Officer/Senior Loan Processor
Bookkeeper

Banking Officer/Operations Manager
Loan Department Supervisor

Call Center Operator

Teller

Head Teller

Assistant Vice President/Branch Manager
Banking Officer/Accounting Manager

Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office

Blackstone Main Office

Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Burkeville Office

Burkeville Office

Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office

Blackstone Main Office
Crewe Office

Amelia Office
Blackstone Main Office
Burkeville Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Drive-In
Amelia Office

Amehia Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Crewe Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Farmville West Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Amelia Office

Crewe Office

Blackstone Shopping Center

Blackstone Main Office

* Denotes Officer of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc. and Citizens Bank and Trust Company.
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Valued Employees of Citizens Bank and Trust Company:

10 to 19 Years of Service - continued

David E. Whitus
Valerie C. Wilkerson
Connie H. Wilkinson
Patricia P. Williamson

Vice President/Lending

Customer Service Representative
Banking Officer/Bookkeeping Manager
Bookkeeper

5 to 9 Years of Service

Kathy E. Beadles
Becky L. Covington
Ginger P. Ferguson
Wanda P. Fore

Tina M. Garrett
Melissa B. Hart
Tracey L. Higgins
Beverly H. Hite
Mary F. Hood
Charles R. Houchins, 11T
Helen P. Inge

Tonia W. Knight
Barbara W, Maitland
Marva Moseley
Elizabeth C. Perez
Kimberly D. Queen

Customer Service Representative
ATM Coordinator Assistant
Teller

Risk Management Specialist
Teller

ACH Assistant/Inventory Control Specialist
Branch Administration Assistant
Loan Processor

Loan Processor

Vice President/Indirect Lending
Part Time Teller

Teller

Teller

Head Teller

Teller

Computer/Proof Operator

< than 5 Years of Service

Anessa S. Acors
Wanda Adams
Rhonda E. Amold
Sandra N. Asal
Kathy M. Atkinson
T. Clyde Bailey
Deborah S. Bamnes
Ronald E. Baron*
Devin M. Barrett
Kay F. Baughan
Lisa E. Biggers
Joseph D. Borgerding*
Melinda E. Chaffin
Nicole A. Clark

Loan Processor

Teller

Assistant Vice President/Branch Manager
Banking Officer/Customer Service Representative
Teiler

Vice President/Loan Officer

Teller

Senior Vice President/Chief Financial Officer
Teller

Assistant Vice President/Branch Manager
Banking Officer/Retail Lender

President and Chief Executive Officer

Teller

Online Banking Services Coordinator/
Branch Operations Assistant

Farmville South Office

Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office

Farmville South Office
Blackstone Main Office
Amelia Office
Blackstone Main Office
Crewe Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Drive-In
Blackstone Main Office
Farmville West Office
Blackstone Drive-In
Blackstone Main Office

Blackstone Main Office
Farmville West Office
Farmville South Office
Farmville South Office
Farmville South Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Shopping Center
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Ofifice
Crewe Office

Farmville West Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Shopping Center
Blackstone Main Office

* Denotes Officer of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc. and Citizens Bank and Trust Company.
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Valued Employees of Citizens Bank and Trust Company:

< than 5 Years of Service - continued

April S. Cottrell
Robert H. Davis, Il
Timothy S. Davis

Teller
Assistant Vice President/IT Coordinator
Risk Management Specialist

Megan L. Douglas Teller
Joellen R. Dowdy Teller
Michelle M. Farley Teller

Michelle M. Fulford
Cetric A. Gayles
Kimberly N. Gerner

Commercial Loan Assistant
Vice President/Small Business & Retail Lender
Vice President/Branch Manager

Sandra C. Griffin Teller

Patricia B. Hammonds Teller

Donna M. Harvey Teller

Dana M. Howell Head Teller

Sharon T. Huddleston Customer Service Representative
Annie M. Ingram Teller

Crystal M. Jennings  Teller

Dawn L. Jolin Teller

Brandon J. Kindall Credit Analyst

Sandra E. Leonard Teller

Jennifer R. Lewis Customer Service Representative
Christopher J. Lorraine Teller
Kristie L. Martin Assistant Vice President/Compliance Officer

Dawn L. Mayton Teller
Shirley M. Mercier Teller
Heidi M. Mitchell Operations Manager/Customer Service Representative
Diane B. Moore Teller

Shante D. Myers-Royal Teller
Angelo E. Parker, Jr.  Operations Manager/Customer Service Representative
Doretha M. Pegram Overdraft Protection Coordinator

James O. Phillips Investment Counselor
Jason E. Powers General Service Technician
Tiffany D. Rickman  Teller

J. Eric Roberts Senior Vice President/Branch & Credit Administration
Danielle N. Rundstrom Teller

Cynthia A. Sechrest ~ Head Teller

P. Ward Shelton Vice President/Commercial Lender

Stephanie N. Stables  Teller

Eric R. Stiles Data Security & Systems Administrator

Ann S. Thomas Financial Analysis & Internal Controls Manager

Carolyn H. Webster ~ Assistant Vice President/Branch Manager

Farmville South Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Farmville West Office
Farmville West Office
Crewe Office

Farmville South Office
Farmville South Office
Colonial Heights Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Shopping Center
Farmville South Office
Farmville South Office -
Burkeville Office
Burkeville Office
Amelia Office
Blackstone Main Office
Crewe Office
Blackstone Main Office
Chesterfield Office
Blackstone Main Office
Amelia Office

Crewe Office

Colonial Heights Office
Blackstone Shopping Center
Amelia Office
Chesterfield Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Burkeville Office
Blackstone Main Office
Farmviile South Office
Chesterfield Office
Chesterfield Office
Colonial Heights Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office
Blackstone Main Office

* Denotes Officer of Citizens Bancorp of Virginia, Inc. and Citizens Bank and Trust Company.

47




Office Locations

Main Office:

126 South Main Street
Blackstone, VA 23824
(434)292-8100

Branch Offices:

Amelia*

9060 North Five Forks Road
Amelia, Virginia 23002
(804) 561-3939

Blackstone*

101 North Main Street
Blackstone, Virginia 23824
(434) 292-8100

Blackstone Shopping Center
1575 South Main Street
Blackstone, Virginia 23824
(434) 292-7205

Burkeville*

102 Second Street, Northeast
Burkeville, Virginia 23922
(434) 767-5534

Chesterfield*

10001 Courtview Lane
Chesterfield, Virginia 23832
(804) 751-0909

Colonial Heights*

497 Southpark Circle
Colonial Heights, VA 23834
(804) 520-1101

Crewe*

210 Carter Street
Crewe, Virginia 23930
(434) 645-7125

Farmville*

1517 West Third Street
Farmville, Virginia 23901
(434) 392-3078

Farmville*

1712 South Main Street
Farmville, Virginia 23901
(434) 392-7633

Corporate website: www.greatbanksva.com

Citizens 24-Hour Telephone Inquiry Service _
Customers may access account information 24 hours a day, 7 days a week from a touch-tone
telephone. Call (434) 292-1033 or 1-800-436-5899.

*Denotes Automated Teller Machine (ATM) at this location.
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NOTES




CItlZGHS Bancgrp
Vlrgmla Inc.

HEADQUARTERS:

126 South Main Street

Blackstone, VA 23824

PHONE: 434-292-8100 or 800-550-1873
FAX: 434-292-1906
www.greatbanksva.com




